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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
410 SOUTH FARMERVILLE STREET
RUSTON, LOUISIANA 71270-4699

DaviDy WRIGHT GeErALD W. Coee, ED.D.
PRESIDENT SUPERINTENDENT

December 16, 1896

Te the Schooeol Board Members
Linceln Parish School Board
410 South Farmerville Street
Ruston I.,A 71270-4699

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Lincoln Parish School Board,
herein after referred to as "Scheol Beoard"”, for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1886, 1s hereby transmitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data,
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rest with the Business Department of the Lincoln Parish School Board. We believe
this report, as presented, 1s accurate in all material aspects, and that 1t is
presented in a manner that fairly sets forth the results of operations and
financial position of the School Board. Further, all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to galn an adeqgquate understanding of our system's financial
affairs have been included. This report was prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles as established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board {(GASB}) o©f the Financial Accounting Foundation. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board is the standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting standards.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Sections

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of three sections: the
Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the Statistical Section. The
Introductory Section includes this letter of transmittal, principal officials and
a organization chart. The Financial Section consists of both general purpose
financial statements, which present an overview and broad perspective of the
School Board as a whole, and more detailed combining and individual fund financial
statements. The Statistical Section includes data prepared from both accounting
and non-accounting sources for the purpose of reflecting financial trends and
fiscal capacity of the School Board, as well as other social and economic
information. The data 1s presented for the past ten years.

Reporting Entaty

For financial reporting purposes, in conformity with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Repcrting Standards, Section 2100, defining the reporting entity, this report
includes all funds and account groups, ©f the School Board.

Economic Condition and Outlock

Lincoln Parish is located in the north central region of the state, situated
between Shreveport to the west and Monroe to the east. Lincoln Parish is home to
two major unaversities, Louilsiana Tech and Grambling State. These two
universities have approximately 2,100 employees with a combined student population
of approximately 18,000, Lincoln Parish has a low cost of living and consistently

has one of the lowest unemployment rates 1n the state. Linceln Parish is packed
with oppeortunities for business as well as pleasure.

Principal industries in Lincoln Parish are the forest products industry and
poultry production and processing. A number of new restaurants have been built and
construction 1s under way on two new motels, Comimunity Trust Bank completed
construction of a new financial center and American Bank of Ruston has begun



construction of & new main branch facility. In 1995 building permits for
resicential and commercilal endeavors were issued 1n excess of 515 million dollars.

The economic stability of the area ensures the strength and steady growth of
business and industry in the future.

Major Initiatives

The 5School Board currently operates with 71 school buses, of which 48 are beard
owned and 23 are contracted., We continue to update the aging bus fleet., 1In 1993-
24 the board purchased eighteen new school buses under a lease purchase agreement,
in 1984-95 nine buses were purchased outright and in 1989%5-1996 another eleven were
purchased. Many of the former contract drivers are not repurchasing new buses as
they wear out and therefore the job of supplying additional buses continues to be
transferred to the school system,

In 1394-1885 the School Board implemented a parish wide computer system for the
collection of statistical data on the student population for reporting purposes.
In 1895-1996 the individual schools began using the accounting program on this
system and all schocels are now keeping theilr financial records in thilis manner.
Changes and additicns continue to be added to facilitate the collection and
utilization of all types of student and financial data.

Another major initiatave started this year is the addition of the Internet access

to all seventeen schools. This will be accomplished in four phases. Phase I -~
to install wire in every schocl in the parish. Phase I1 - to install hubs and
routers in each school and the central office. Phase IIT - the purchase of

computers and servers for the schoels and Phase IV will be the actual connections
to phone lines for access. At this time Phase 1 has been completed and we are
proceeding with Phase I1.

In December of 1995 a fire partially destroyed the auditorium at Ruston High
School. Rebuillding was started in the spring of 1996 and should be completed
during the next fiscal vyear.

Single Audit

The Single Audit Act of 19284 and U. S. Office of Management and Budget, Circularx
A-128, “Audits of State and Local Governments," reqguire an annual audit unless
the legislature of the State opts to have a biennial audit covering both years.
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 (1} (1) regquires that any auditee that receives
three million five hundred thousand dollars or mere in revenues and other sources
in any ohe yeal be audited annually. Lincoin Parish has contracted with an
independent auditor to conduct the annual audit. Our 1independent auditor
performed a Single Audit for the year ended June 30, 1996 and has 1ssued the
Single Audit reports under a separate binder,

Internal Accounting Control

The management of the School Board i1s responsible for establishing and maintaining
a system of internal accounting control. The objectives of a system of internal
accounting control are to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
Board policy, administrative and accounting procedures, and ¢grant administration
procegures are fully implemented and are being adhered te. In addition, internal
accounting contrels are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance regarding: (1) the safe-quarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition and (2} the reliakility of financial records for
preparing financlal statements and maintaining accountability for assets.

All internal accounting control evaluations occur within the above framework. We
believe the Schocol Beard's internal accounting controls adeguately safeguard
assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial
transactions. In addition, we believe the controls provide adequate assurance
that federal programs are properly administered and accounted for,

11
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Accounting System and Budgetary Control

an explanation of the 8School Beoard's acccocunting and budgetary policlies are
contained in the Notes to the Financial Statements. ExXplained in detail are the
basis of accounting, fund structure and other significant information regarding
accounting and budgetary policies. The objective of these budgetary controls 1is
to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated
budget approved by the School Board. Activities of the General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of
budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannol legally exceed
the appropriate amount) is established by function within an individual fund.
Budget comparisons are submitted pericdically to the board. The Business
Department monitors the budget and presents budget amendments, when deemed
necessary, to the Board for approval. All budget amendments must be presented to
the Board for approval.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section
of this report, the School Board continues to meet its responsibility for sound
finhancial management.

General Governmental Function

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, General Fund revenues and other sources
exceeded expenditures and other uses by $602,595. This was primarily the result
of increased collections from Sales Tax.

At June 30, 1996 the fund balance of the School Board's General Fund, including
reserved and unreserved, was 53,456,630,

The revenues and other financing sources of the General Fund increased from the
prior year's $25,034,9854 to the current year's 525,500,428 an increase ot 1.86
percent. This was due primarily to the increase in sales tax collections. Sales
tax collections were up approximately 7.8 percent over 1994-95 totals.

The General Fund expenditures increased from $24,088,012 in 1894-95 to $24,897,833
for the 1995-96 fiscal year, an increase of 3.36 percent. This increase was due
to normal step increases in salary and employee benefits and the purchase of
eleven school buses.

The School Board has four debt service funds. The three school district debt
service funds are maintaining a fund balance to meet the two ensuing years
principal and interest reguirements. The bonds of the districts mature through
the year 2007. The Choudrant No. 6 and Simsboro No. 3 Debt Service Funds were
defeased during the 1883-94 fiscal year resulting in a decrease of the districts
debt service payments over the next 14 years by $409,619 and obtained an economic
gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the
olag and new debt) of $5314,493,

The School Board has two Internal Service Funds - Workers' Compensation and Group
Health Insurance program. The Workers' Compensation Fund was established in July,
1990, for the purpose ¢f self-insuring the school system's exposure to employee
accidents and injury. This fund ended the fiscal year with retained earnings of
$109,740.

The Group Health Insurance Fund was established in November 198%, to provide group
insurance health care and dental benefits to employees of the Schocecl Board and
their families. The fund had additions of $3,448,879 and deducticns cof $3, 684,562
during 1995-96, resulting in an operating loss of $235,683 for the year ended
June 30, 18%6. After non-operating revenues the statements reflect a net loss of
$228,260. The decrease in the retained earnings was the result of an increase 1n
medical claims and a number of large clalims.
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The School Activity Fund is the only agency fund. Thas fund accounts for funds
of the various schools and organizations in which the school has a fiduciary
responsibillity. For fiscal vear 1995-96 it had additions of §1,249,972 and
deductions of $1,252,283 leaving a balance of $274,652.

The schedules below present a summary of revenues and expenditures of the
governmental funds (General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds)
for the year ended June 30, 19896.

Percentage
Increase
Percent (Decrease)
rmount of Total From 1985
Revenues
Local Sources:
Taxes:
Ad Valorem S 5,224, 341 16.03% -5.53%
Sles and Use 6,110, 6473 18.75% 7.79%
Interest Earnings 497,614 1.52% 21.717%
Rent of Facilities 2,282 0.01% -56.770%
Food Service 384,354 1.18% ~3.84%
Other 512,623 1.58% 430,49%
State Sources 16,521,941 50.694% ~2.66%
Federal Sources 3,338,562 10,.24% 8.08%
Total 532,593, 360 100.00% 1.31%
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular Programs $13,547,186 4] .88% 1.02%
Special Ed. Programs 2,315,990 7.16% ~5.30%
Vocational EQ. 1,037,566 3.21% 11.88%
Other Programs 621,865 1.92% 32.46%
Special Programns 1,270,108 32.93% 36.00%
Adult/Continuing Ed. 4¢, 9859 0.15% 132.80%
Support Services:
Pupil Support 081,758 2.14% 1.989%
Instructional Staff
Support 1,345,358 4.16% 14.66%
General Adminlistration 551, 328 1.70% -29.40%
School Administration 1,617,404 5.00% -1.50%
Business Services 206, 560 0.85% 12.97%
Operation & Maintenance
of Plant 2,075,608 6.42% B.02%
Student Transportation 1,843,127 6.00% —-1.48%
Cperation of Non-Instructicnal
Services
Food Services 2,282,814 7.00% ~-3.08%
Community Service 2,131 0.01% -4.44%
Facilities Acdguisition and
Construction 531,976 1.04% 587.15%
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,240,373 3.83% 19.27%
Interest & Bank Charges 519,519 2.84% -4.,778%
Total Expenditures 232,347,081 100.00% 3.91%

IV




e .

Cash Management

The School Board exercises an agdressive investment program. During 198%5-96, i1dle
funds were temporarily 1invested in certificates of deposit and government
securities. In January 1885 a cash management account was set up. The barnk
invested funds daily 1n government securities and sold them on the fellowling day.
This allowed the balance 1n the accounts to earn significantly higher interest
than it would have in a regular interest bearing account. Investments are secured
by federal deposit insurance or with securities pledged by the financial
institution and held by an approved third party custodial bank in the name of the
fiscal agent bank. Procedures followed and securities pledged are in accordance
witl the Statutes of the State of Louisiana.

During the fiscal year 1ihterest income on matured investments amounted to
$497,614. 1Interest rates fluctuated from a low of 4.8 to 5.61 percent during the
yeall. As a result of the changes in interest rates and the revised investment
strategy, 1interest income was up $88,956 from the previous year.

Debt Administration

The Scheool Board has four Debt Service Funds; Ruston District No. 1, Simsbhoro
Disfrict No. 3, Choudrant District No. & and Series 1985 Sinking. The three
school districts' debt retirement is funded by a dedicated ad valorem tax which
is authorized for the maturity period of the debt. Millage rates are adjusted as
reguired to meet debt service reguirements. The Series 1935 Sinking debt retire-
men!. is being paid by federal dollars funded through the Title I program.

On October 5, 1983, the School Board issued 51,255,000 and 51,670,000 in General
Cbligation School Refunding Bonds, with interest rates of 2.6 to 4.3 per cent, to
advance refund $1,480,000 of outstanding June 1986 Series bonds with i1nterest
rates of 7.2 to 7.6 per cent and 351,085,000 of cutstanding August 1986 Series
bonds with interest rates of 7.85 to 8,00 per cent, The net proceeds of
52,203,062 ($2,925,000 bond 1ssue less a $21,938 underwriter's discount) from the
sale of the new bonds were used to purchase United States government securities,
Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
provide for all remaining debt service payments of the June and August 1986 Series
bonds relating to bonds that mature after September 1, 1926 and August 1, 185¢,
respectively, including interest payments on these bonds, from September 1, 1985,
until maturity. As a result, the June and August 1886 Series bonds maturing after
September 1, 18%6 and August 1, 1996, respectively, are considered to be defeased
and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the long-term debt account
group.

These bond jissues are rated as feollows:

Moody's Investors Service

Ruston District No. 1 Aaa
simsboro District No. 3 Baa
Choudrant District No. & Raa

Risk Management

During 1995-96 the School Board continued the Workers'! Compensation Fund to self-
insure in the area of employee accident and injury. This risk management program
is supplemented by a transfer of funds when deemed necessary. As a part of this
comprehensive plan, various risk contrecl technigques which 1include employee
accident prevention training have been implemented.
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The School Board also continued to maintain its self-insured health and dental
program, This program is funded by employee premium payments and supplemented by
benefits paid from the 1967 Sales Tax Accounts. As a comprehensive part of this
plan it 1s administered and monitered by a third party administrator who employs
various risk contrel measures.

General Fixed Assets

The General Fixed Assets Account Group of the sSchoecl Board is utilized to record
those fixed assets used in performance of general Schocl Board functions. The
amount represents the original cost of the assets. Depreciation of general fixed
assets is not recognized in the accounting system nor are public domaln or
infrastructures capitalized, as explained in the notes to the financial statement.

Independent Audit

State Statutes regquires an annual audit by an independent certified public
accountant for any auditee receiving at least three million five hundred thousand
dollars in one year, The acccounting firm of Allen, Green and Robinette was
selected to conduct the audit. All funds and account dgroups of the Board
presented in this report have been audited by Allen, Green and Robinette. The
audit has been completed and the auditors' report on the general purpose financial
statements and the accompanying combining and individual fund and account group
statements and schedules are included in the Financial Section of this report.
In addition, the audit report refers to the Statistical Section, which was
prepared by the Business Department and our School Board is solely respoensible for
1ts content.

GFOA Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOR)
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 1is a prestigious
national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation
of state and local Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, whoese contents conform to program standards. Such reports must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requil rements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The School
Board was awarded this Certificate of Achievement for the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 1955.

ASRO Certificate of Excellence

The Lincoln Parish School Board received the Assoclation of Schoel Business
Officials, International Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1895, This award certifies that the Comprehensave
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 19895 substantially
cor.forms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as recommended and
adopted by the Association of Scheool Business Officials International.

The Award 1s granted only after an intensive review of financial reports by an
expert panel of certified public accountants and practicing school business
officials.

Management believes that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal
vear ended June 30, 1996, which will be submitted to GFOA and ASBO for review,
continues to conform to the principles and standards of each organization.
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ERNEST L. ALLEN, CPA MAIL ADDRESS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOI.N PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Loutsrana

‘We have audited the accompanying gencral purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board
as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, as listed in the forcgoing table of contents. These general purposc
financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibility 1s to express an
opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

'We conducted our audit i accordance with gencrally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the provisions of Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments." Thosc standards and OMB Circular A-128
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a (est basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial siatements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opimion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, m all matenal
respects, the financial position of the Lincoln Parish School Board as of June 30, 1996, and the results of operations
and cash flows for its proprietary funds for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report datcd November 22, 1996
on our consideration of Lincoln Parish School Board's internal control structure and a report dated November 22,
1996 on its compliance with laws and regulations. |

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOURTANTS and SDCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLYC ACCOUNTANTS
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BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken
as a whele. The accompanying combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules listed
in the 1able of contents arc presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general
purpose financial statecments of the Lincoln Parish Schoo)l Board. Such information has been subjected 1o the
proccdures applicd in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in al)
matcrial respects 1n relation to the gencral purpose financial statements taken as a whole. Also, the accompanying
financial information listed sn the table of contents as the Statistical Section is presented for the purpose of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the gencral purposc financial staiements of the Lincoln Parnish School Board.
Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the gencral purposc
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the information.

Py, Sreen # Rotyior T

ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.

Monroe, Louisiana
November 22,1996




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
Combined Balance Sheet

June 30, 1996
saakenikrrtiak SOVERNMENTAL FUNDS**#wenetex DROPRIETARY

SPECIAL DEBT TYPE-
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE INTERNAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS SERVICE
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,404,703 % 1,144,763 $ 66,387 $ 228,532
Investments 0 0 1,960,000 0
Receivables 44 919 170,683 28,565 5,357
Due from other funds 40,754 0 2,804 0
Deposits 09,476 2,500 0 0
Inventory 0 43,628 0 0
Land, buildings and equipment 0 0 0 0
Other debils
Amount available in debt service fund 0 0 0 0
Amount to be provided for payment of debt D _ 0 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 5589852 $ 1,361,584 $ 2,067,756 § 233 889
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities
Accounis, salaries and other payables $ 2,133,222 % 288,059 % 0% 277,832
Due to other funds 0 40,754 2,804 0
Deposits due others 0 0 0 0
Deferred revenues 0 18,105 O 0
Matured bonds 20,044 0
Notes payable 0 0 0 0
Bonds payable 0 0 0 0
Capital leases payable O 0 0 O
Compensated absences payable 0 0 0 0
Total Liabilities $ 2,133,222 % 346918 $ 22,848 $ 277,832
Equity and other credits
investments in general fixed assels $ 0% 0% 0% 0
Refainzd earnings (deficit) (153,683)
Reserved for future claims 0 0 0 109,740
Fund Balances:
Reserved for inventory 0 43 628 0 0
Reserved for instruction, repairs and construction 461,632 O 0 0
Reserved for salary improvements 34,555 0 0 0
Reserved for bond surplus 12,773 0 0 O
Reserved for debt service 0 0 2,034,908 0
Unreserved and undesignated fund balance 2,947,670 971,038 0 0
Total Equity and other credits $ 3,456,630 $ 1,014 666 § 2,034,908 % (43,943)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS  § 5589852 % 1,361,584 § 2.057.756 % 233,889

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Statement A

i**t***tiACCOU NT GROUPS*******H*

FIDUCIARY- GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL
AGENCY FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM

FUND ASSETS DEBT ONLY)

$ 274692 % 0% 0% 7,118,077

0 0 0 1,960,000

0 0 0 243,534

O 0 0 43,558

101,876

0 0 0 43,628

O 34,557,177 0 34,657 177

0 0 2,034,008 2,034,908

0 0 14,028,983 14,029,983

$ 274692 34557177 $ 16,064,881 $ 60,139,841

$ 0% 0% 0% 2699113
0 0 0 43,558

274,692 0 0 274,692

0 0 0 18,105

20,044

0 0 210,169 210,169

0 0 14,115,000 14,115,000

0 0 457,154 457 154

0 0 1,282,568 1,282,568

$ 274,692 $ 0% 16064801 % 19,120,403
$ 0% 34557177 $ 0% 34557177
(153,683)

0 0 0 109,740

0 0 0 43,628

0 0 0 461,632

0 0 0 34 555

0 0 0 12,773

0 0 0 2 034,908

0 0 0 3,018,708

$ 0% 34557177 % 0$ 41,019,438

$ 274692 § 34,657,177 % 16,064,891 $ 60,139,841




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Statement B
SPECIAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE {(MEMORANDUM
FUND FUNDS FUNDS ONLY)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 2619,826 % 008 451 $ 1,606,064 % 5224, 341
Sales and use 6,110,643 0 0 6,110,643
Interest earnings 333,344 54 178 110,082 497 614
Food service 0 384,354 O 384 354
Other 444,362 71,543 0 515,805
State sources:
Equalization 15,232,067 348,519 0 15 680,586
Other 632,982 308,373 0 841,355
Federal sources: 127,204 3,211,358 0 3,338,562
Total Revenues $ 25600428 $ 5 286,776 $ 1,806,156 % 32 593.360
EXPENDITURES
Current.
Instruction:
Regular programs $ 13,547,186 § 0% 0 9% 13 547,186
Special programs 2,343,385 1,236,568 0 3,679,053
Other instructional programs 1,420,488 292,047 0 1,712,535
Support services:
Student services £981,758 D 0 591,758
Instrictional staff support 1,039,351 306,007 O 1,345,358
General administration 448,645 48 972 52,711 551,328
School adminstration 1,617,404 0 0 1.617,404
Business services 306,560 0 0 306,560
Plan! services 1,207,438 868,220 D 2,075,659
Student transportation services 1,781,187 161,940 0 1,943,127
Food services 247,972 2,034,842 0 2282814
Community service program 2,131 0 0 2,134
Facilities acquisition and construction 138,045 200,604 193,327 531,876
Debt setvice:
Principal retirement 70,542 0 1,169,831 1,240 373
Interest and bank charges 35,740 0 883,779 _ 919 519
Total xpenditures 3 24 897,833 § 5150.200 $ 2298648 % 32.347 681
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 602,595 % 136,576 $ (493,492} $ 245 679
(CONTINUED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 19986

Statement B

SPECIAL DEBT TOTAL ‘
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE (MEMORANDUM
FUND FUNDS FUNDS ONLY)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of fixed asset $ 0% 555 § 0 % 555
Proceeds from certificate of indebtedness 0 0 275,489 275,489
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0% 555 % 275489 $ 276,044
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 602595 % 137,131 & (218,003} % 521,723
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,854 035 877,535 2.252. 911 5 084 481
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 3,456,630 1,014,666 2,034 808 6,606,204
(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis} and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Statement C
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
l ocal sources:
Taxes:;
Ad valorem $ 2,564,000 $ 2,619,826 $ 55,826
Sales and use 5,700,000 6,110,643 410,643
Interest €arnings 279,550 333,344 53,794
Other 247,800 444,362 196,562
State sources:
Equalization 15,230,496 15,232,067 1,571
Other 651,703 632,982 (18,721}
Federal sources: _ 111,635 127,204 15,569
Total Revenues 24.785,184 25500428 $ 715,244
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs $ 13,672,670 13,647,186 % 125,484
Special programs 2,206,320 2,343,385 (137,065}
Other instructional programs 1,339,845 1,420,488 (80,643)
Support services:
Student services 701,395 691,758 9,637
Instructional staff support 1,037,540 1,039,351 (1,811)
General administration 568,790 448,645 118,145
School adminisiration 1,623,950 1,617,404 6,546
Business services 292,530 306,560 {14,030)
Plant services 1,155,780 1,207,439 (51,659)
Student transporlation services 1,979,201 1,781,187 198,014
Central services 15,0560 0 15,050
Food services 237,535 247 972 {10,437)
Community service program 4,700 2,131 2,569
Facilities acquisition and construction 91,000 138,045 (47,045)
Debt service:
Principal retirement 0 70,642 (70.542)
Interest and bank charges 0 35,740 (35,740)
Total Expenditures $ 24924306 $§ 24897833 % 26,473
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES - % {139.122) § 602,505 $ 741,717
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,840,157 2,854,035 13,878

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 2701035 § 3,456,630 § 755 595

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT,
8




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Statement D
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:

Ad valorem % 901,100 $ 008,451 % 7,351
Interest earnings 35,050 54,178 19,128
Food service 397,760 384,354 (13,406)
Other 34,150 71,543 37,393

State sources:
Equalization 350,339 348,519 (1,820)
Other 288,367 308,373 20,006
Federal sources: 3,269,812 3,211,358 (68,454)
Total Revenues $ 5276578 § 5286776 % 10,198
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:

Special programs $ 1,407,073 $ 1,236,568 $ 170,505

Other instructional programs 187,761 292,047 {104,286)
Support services:

Instructional staff support 342,645 306,007 36,638

General administration 53 148 43,972 9,176

fPlant services B899, 1561 868,220 30,931

Student transportation services 199,300 161,940 37,360
Food services 2,174,400 2,034 842 139,558

Facilities acquisition and construction 110,001 200,604 (90,603}
Total Expenditures $ 5,378,479 9 5150200 $ 229279
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (102,901) $ 136,576 $ 239,477
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the saie of fixed asset ) 600 555 {45)

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (102,301) $ 137,131 $ 239,432

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 900,874 877,535 (23,339)

$ 798,573 3 1,014 666 $ 216,003

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit)
For The Year Ended June 30, 1996

Statement E
OPERATING REVENUE
Premiums $ 3,448,977
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration % 118 551
Insurance expense 385,613
Claims 3,225,044
Total operating expenses $ 3,729,208
Operating income (loss) $ (280,231)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Earnings on investments $ 10,264
Net income (loss) $ (268,967)
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 226,024
RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR $ (43,943)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For theYear Ended June 30, 1996
Statement F

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (280,231)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided (used) for operating

activities
Increase (decrease) in payable 25,588
(Increase) decrease in receivable 4 806

Net cash provided (used) for
operating activities $ (249.837)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) decrease in investments $ 327,116
Earnings on investments 10,264
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities $ 337,380

Net (increase) decrease in cash and
cash equivalents $ 87,643

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 140,989

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR $ 228 532

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

INTRODUCTION

The Lincoln Parish School Board was crcated by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 17:51 to provide public
education for the children within Lincoln Pansh. The School Board 1s authorized by LSA-R.S. 17:81 to establish
pohcies and regulations for its own government consisient with the laws of the State of Lowsiana and the regulations
of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School Board 1s comprised of twelve members
who are elected from {welve districts for terms of four years.

The School Board operates thirteen schools within the parish with a total enrollment of approximately 7,091
pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, somc of thesc schools offer special education and/or ~
adult education programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and school food services for the
students.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the School Board have been prepared in conformity with generally
acceptcd accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) 1s the accepted standard-sctiing body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

GASB Statement 14 establishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting eniity and component units
that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statcment, the School Board 1s
considered a primary governmeni, since it 1s a special purpose government that has a separately clected
governing body, 1s icgally scparate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments, As used
in GASB Statement 14, fiscally independent means that the School Board may, without the approval or consent
of anothcr governmental entity, determine or modify 1ts own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges,
and 1ssued bonded debt. The School Board also has no component units, defined by GASB Statement 14 as
other legally separate organizations for which the elected School Board members arc financially accountablc.
There are no other primary governments with which the School Board has a significant relationship.

B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

The accounts of the School Board are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups. A
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a sclf-balancing sct of accounts. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and 1s used to aid management in demonstrating
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The munmimum number of funds are
maintained consistent with legal and managenal requirements. Accounl groups are a reporting device to

account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

The funds of the School Board are classified into three calegorics: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.
In furn, cach category is divided into separate fund types. The fund and account group classifications and a
description of each existing fund type follow:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for the School Board's general government activities, including
the collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition or construction of
ocneral fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term debt. Governmental funds include:

General Fund — the primary operating fund of the School Board, It accounts for all financial resources
of the School Board, except those required to be accounted for another fund.

Special revenue funds — accounts for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specificd purposes (not including expendablc trusts or major capital projccts).

Debt service funds — accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being {inanced by
proprictary or nonexpendablc trust funds.

Proprietary Funds

Proprictary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the
determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Proprictary funds
differ from governmental funds in that their focus 1s on income measurcment, which, together with the
maintenance of equity, is an important financial indicator. Proprictary fund(s) include the following:

Internal Service Funds - accounts for operations that provide services other departments or agencics of
the govemment, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Workers' Compensation Fund — This fund, which began in fiscal year 1991, is used to account jor
the payment of workers' compensation benefits. Fund revenues arc derived from government
allocations. Thesc revenues are planned to match: (1) expenses of insurance premiums in excess of
fick retention amounts: (2) estimated claim losses resulting from risk retention programs which include
estimated labilitics for claims incurred but not yet reported at year end, and (3) operaling cxpenscs.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIJES (Continued)
B. FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

Group Health Insurance Fund — Monies in this fund are received from three sources: employee
deductions from payroll, 1967 Sales Tax Fund and the State of Louisiana. Momes arc used to pay
employec health insurance claims, the administrative cost to the insurance administrator for
administration of the plan and processing medical claims, cost of excess and specific mnsurance 1o
protect the fund from exposure to large claims, hospital pre-certification, and life msurance with an
INSUrance carrier.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf
of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the School Board. Trust
funds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust agreement.

Agency funds arc custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not present results of operations or
have a measurement focus. Agency funds are accounied for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. This fund is used to account for assets that the government holds for others m an agency
capacity. The agency fund 1s as follows:

School Activity Agency Fund — accounts for asscts held by the School Board as an agent for the
individual schools and school organizations.

Account Groups

The general fixed assets account group is used to account for fixed assets not accounted for 1n proprictary
or trust funds.

The general long-term debt account group is used to account for general long-term debt and certain other
habilities that are not specific liabilities of proprietary or trust funds.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Governmental Funds

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
Governmenta! fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurcment focus and the modified
accruel basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.c., when they are “measurable and available™). “Measurable™ mecans the amount
of the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafler 1o pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues avallable
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLI CIES (Continued)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

if they arc collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when

duc. and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the
obligations are expecied to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

With this mcasurecment focus, only current assets and current labilities are genecrally included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases 1n net current assets.
The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures:

Revenues

Ad valorem taxes and sales taxes are susceptible to accrual,

Entitlements and shared revenues (which include state equalization and stal¢c revenuc sharing) arc
recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual
criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recogmzed as revenuc when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

Other receipts become measurable and available when cash is received by the School Board and are
recognized as revenue at that ime.

Expenditures

Salaries are recorded as paid. Salaries for ninc-month employecs who elect to be paid over twelve
months are accrued at June 30.

Other Financing Sources (Uses

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or any other types, such as capital leasc
transactions, salec of fixed asscts, debt extinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, ct cctera) arc
accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These other financing sources (uses) are recognized
at the time the underlying events occur.

Proprietary Funds

Proprictary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenucs are recorded when carned and expenscs arc
recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. With this measurcment focus, all assets and all habilitices
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louistana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Fiduciary Funds

The agency fund 1s custodial i nature and docs not present results of operations or have a measurement
focus. Agency funds arc accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. This fund 1s uscd
to account for assets that the School Board holds for others in an agency capacity.

D. DEFERRED REVENUES

The School Board reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when
resources are recerved by the School Board before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are
received prior to the mcurrence of quabifying expenditurcs. In subsequent periods, when the Schoo!l Board
has a legal claim to the resources, the hability for deferred revenuc is removed from the combined balance
shect and the revenue is recognized.

E. BUDGETS

The following summarizes the budget activitics of the School Board during the year ended June 30, 1996:

Completed and available

for public inspection August 7, 1995
Public notices August 7, 1995
Public hearings September 5, 1995
Board adoption September 5, 1995

1. The School Board adopted budgets for the General Fund and all special revenuc funds.

2. The budgets arc preparced on the modified accrual basis of accounting. All appropriations lapse at year
end.

3. Encumbrances are not recognized within the accounting records for budgetary control purposes.
4. Formal budget integration (within the accounting records) is employed as a management contro! device.

5. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriatc amount) is established by function within an individual fund. Budget comparisons are
submitied periodically to the board. The Business Department monitors the budget and presents budget
amendments, when deemed necessary, to the Board for approval. All budget amendments must be
presented to the Board for approval. Budget amounts included in the accompanying financial statements
include the oniginal adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. The budget amendments were not
considered significant by the Board.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, 1s not employed. However, outstanding purchase orders are taken into consideration
before expenditures are incurred in order 10 assure that applicablc appropriations arc not exceeded. In addition,
the monthly budget reports are reviewed to ensure compliance with the budget, and where necessary, revisions
1o the budget are made.

G. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits.  Cash cquivalents
include amounts in investments with original maturities of ninety days or less. Under state law, the School
Board may deposit funds 1n demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, moncy market accounts, or
time deposits with state banks organized under Lowisiana law and national banks having their principal offices
1n ouisiana.

Under state law, the School Board may invest in United States Bonds, Treasury Notes or Certificates.
These arc classified as investments if their original maturitics exceed ninety days; however, if the original
maturitics are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. Investments are stated at cost.

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the coursc of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for scrvices
rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or duc to other funds on the
balance shect. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund receivables/payables.

I. INVENTORY

Inventory of the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund consists of food purchased by the School
Board and commoditics granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana
Department of Agneulture and Forestry. Inventory of the School Food Service Fund is accounted for on the
consumption method. Inventory items are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and commoditics are assigned
values based on information provided by the United States Department of Agriculture. Inventories are offset
by a fund balance reserve which indicates that these do not constitute "available spendable resources”, even
though they are a component of total assets.

Acquisition of maicrials and supphes other than the food purchases are accounted for on the purchase
method, that 1s, the expenditures are charged when the items are purchased. The value of these materials and

supplies, except for the food purchased in the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund, are not considered
significant at June 30, 1996, and their value 1s not shown in the accompanying balance sheet.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures at the time they are purchased.or
constructed, and the related assets are capitalized (reporied) in the general fixed assets account group. Public
domain or infrastructures such as sidewalks and parking lots are not capitalized. Interest cost mcurred during
construction 1s not capitalized. Depreciation has not been provided on general fixed assets.

Approximately $32,315,532 or 94 percent of fixed assets are valued at actual historical cost while the
remaining $2,241,645, or 6 pereent, are valued at estimated historical cost.

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

All twelve-month employees earn from ten to fifteen days of vacation leave each year, depending on their
length of service with the School Board. Vacation leave may be accumulated and carried forward 1o the next
calendar year. However, upon termination, no payments are madc to employees for unused vacation leave.
Ninc-month employees earn two work days of personal leave per academic year, which 1S non-cumulative.

All School Board employees earn from ten to eighteen days of sick leave each year, depending upon the
number of months employed. Sick leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death,
unused accumulated sick leave of up to twenty-five days 1s paid to the employee or 1o the employec's estate
al the employee's current rate of pay. Under the Louisiana Teachers® Retirement System, the total unused
accumulated sick leave, including the twenty-five days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as
carned scrvice. Under the Louisiana School Employees”™ Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave, which
excludes the twenty-five days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service.

Sabbatical leave may be granted for rest and recuperation and {or professional and cultural improvement.
Any employec with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one semester
of sabbatical leave after three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more
years of continuous service. '

Leave benefits are bascd on accrued leave benefits of employees with ten years service to a maximum of
twenty-five days at their current annual salary .

The School Board’s recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follows:
GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation Jeave and other compensated absences with simifar
charactenistics should be accrued as liability as the benefits are earncd by the employees if both of the

following conditions are met.

A. The employees” right to receive compensation are atiributable to services already rendered.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

B. It is probable that the employer will compensate the cmployecs for the benefits through paid time
off or some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement.

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a hability for sick leave should be accrued using one of the
following ternunation approaches:

A. An accrual for camned sick Jeave should be made only to the extent it is probable that the benefits
will result in termination payments, rather than be taken as abscnces duc to ilincss or other
contingencies, such as medical appointments and funcrals.

B. Allermnatively, a governmental entity should estimate 1ts accrued sick lcave liabihity based on the
sick lcave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who currently arc cligible to
receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible 1n the
futurc to recerve such pavments.

Sabbatical lecave benefits are recorded as expenditures 1n the period paid.

Only the current portion of the hability for compensated absences is reported in the fund. The current portion
is the amount lefl unpaid at the end of the reporting period that normally would be liquidated with expendable
avanlable financial resources. The remainder of the hability 1s reported 1n the general Jong-term debt account
group.

l.. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-tcrm obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds are reported n the gencral
long-term obligations account group. Expenditures for principal and mnterest payments for long-term
obhgations ar¢ recognized 1n the governmental funds when due.

M. FUND EQUITY

Reserves — Reserves represent those portions of fund cquity not appropriable for expenditures or lcgally
scgregated for a specific futurc use

N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from 1t that arc
properly applicable to another fund arc recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
cxpenditures in the fund that 1s reimbursed.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permancnt transfers
of equity are reporied as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers arc reporied as operating
transfers.

0. SALES TAXES

The School Board reccives a one and one half cent sales and use tax. The tax is collected by the Lincoln
Parish Sales and Use Tax Commission and is remitted to the School Board the same month the tax 1s collected.
The sales and use tax is recorded as revenue in the General Fund.

A one-half cent sales and use tax, approved September 12, 1967, is dedicated to supplement other revenucs
available for the payment of salaries of teachers in the public clementary and sccondary schools and for the
expenses of operating said schools, such operating cxpenses to include payment of other personnel employed
by the Schoo] Board in addition to teachers.

Another one-half cent sales and usc 1ax, approved May 19, 1979, and rededicated March 8, 1938, was
dedicated as foltows:

Two-thirds is for paying salarics of certified and non-certified employces of the School Board above
their base pay and paying rctircment and other benefits for said employees.

One-third is for constructing, acquiring, crecting, improving and/or repairing schools and school-
related facilities and for paying the cost of utilitics thercfor, and for improving instruction, providing
instructional materials and student services and curriculum enrichment, including salarics for overstafied
instructional positions, in and for the public schools.

The third one-half cent sales and usc tax, approved January 16, 1993, is dedicated for thc purpose of
paying institutional and support staff salaries and benefits, including but not limited to salarics and benefits,
including but not limited to salaries and benefits for elementary school librarians, elementary school vocal
music instructors, and elementary coordinators.

P. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS
Losses resulting from claims and judgements arc estimated in accordance with Governmental Accounting

Standards Board No. 10. The liability for such losses is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. Incurred but
nct reported claims as of June 30, 1996 have been considered in determining the accrued hability.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q. TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS

The tota! columns on thc combined statements are captioned Memorandum Only to indicatc that they are
presented only 1o facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results
of operations or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data
comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data,

R. ADOPTION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 1993, GASB issued Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprictary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprictary Fund Accounting” (GASB 20), which discusscs
the application of authoritative accounting pronouncements for proprictary accounting and other funds that
use proprictary accounting.

The School Board was required 1o adopt GASB 20 in fiscal year 1995. GASB 20 allows the School Board
1o ¢lect to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after November 30,
1989, exceplt for those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, or to apply all GASB pronoun-
cements and only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989. The School Board has clected

to apply all GASB pronouncements and only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989,

S. NEW APPLICABLE GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In November 1994, the GASB i1ssucd Statement No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmenta) Employers” (GASB 27). GASB 27 prescribes changes 1n pension accounting and disclosure
requirements for employers participating in single employer/agent multiple defined benclit plans, cost sharing
multiple emplover defined benefit plans, and defined contribution plans. The School Board sponsors a
multiple-employer defined contribution plan which has some characteristics of a defined benefit pension plan.
GASB 27 1s effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 1997, The School Board has not yet determined
when GASB 27 will be adopted or determined the effects of adoption.

NOTE 2 - FUND DEFICITS

The Group Health Insurance Internal Scervice Fund had a fund deficit at year end of $153,683. The deficit s
expected to be erased by revenues in the 1996-1997 fiscal year.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 3 - EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

The following individual funds had actual expenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year ended Junc 30,

1996:
Fund Budget
General Fund
General Accounts
Current:
Instructhion:
Other instructional programs $997,800
Support services:
Business Services 251,400
Plant services 663,750
Facilities acquisition and construction 51,000
1967 Sales Tax Accounts
Current:
Instruction:
Special programs 203,000
Adult continuing education 59,045
Supporl services:
Instructional staff support 53,600
Schoo! administration 98.700
Plant scrvices 63,025
Student transportation services 115,760
1979 Sales Tax Accounts
Current:
Instruction:
Special programs 121,800
Other instructional programs 130,000
Support services:
Student services 24 875
General administration 24.050
School administration 62,800
Plant services 40,900
Student transportation services 69,680
Food services 78,950

23

Actual

$1.024,784

270,146
668,120
09 445

312,925
87,910

65,198
118,385
71,528
120,996

140,977
144,828

32,823
28,704
75,040
49,049
75.695
86.820

Unfavorable
Variance

$26 984

18,746
4,370
48,445

109,925
28 865

11,598
19,685
8503
5236

19,177
14,828

7 948
4.654
12,240
§.149
6.015
7870




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louistana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 3 - EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (Continued)

Unfavorablc
Fund Budget Actual Varnance
General Fund (Continued)
1993 Sales Tax Accounts
Current;
Instruction:
Regular programs 341,350 1,039,184 97,834
Special programs 143,100 157,916 14,816
Other instructional programs 122,000 135,411 13,411
Support services:
Student services 36,200 37.848 1,648
Instructional staff support 113,900 120,672 6,772
Business services 8.300 8,624 324
Plant services 45,900 54,078 8,178
Student transportation services 75,850 87,273 11,423
Food services 01,715 160,344 8.629
1993 Ad Valorem Tax Accounts
Current:
Support services:
Student services 2.100 2.126 26
Instructional stafl support 2,500 2,565 65
School administration 41,950 44,805 2,855
Plant scrvices 342205 364,664 22,459
Special Revenue Funds
Title 1
Facilities acquisition and construction 51,501 107,576 56,075
Adult Education
Current:
Instruction:
Other instructional programs 44 878 46,958 2,080
Support services:
General administration 201 650 449
Parishwide Maintenance -
Current.
Support Services:
Plant services 498 050 510,918 12,868
Facilities acquisition and construction 58,500 03,028 34,528
Simsboro No. 3 Maintenance and Operation
Current:
Support services:
Plant services 36,000 44 004 8,004




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 3 - EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (Continued)

Unfavorablc
Fund Budget Actual - __Variance
Special Revenues Fund (Continued)
Dubach No. 5 Maintenance and Operation
Current:
Support services:
General admanistration 1,400 1,893 493
Special Programs
Current:
Instruction:
Other nstructional programs 142,883 245,089 102,206
Support scrvices:
Student transportation services - 1,280 1,280

NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES

The School Board levies laxes on real and business personal property located within Lincoln Parish's
boundarics. Property taxes are levied by the School Board on property valucs assessed by the Lincoln Parish Tax
Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission.

The Lincoln Parish Sheriff's Office bills and collects property taxes for the School Board. Collections arc
remitted to the Schoo! Board monthly.

Property Tax Calendar

Asscssment datc January 1, 1995

Tax bills mailed On or about November 25, 19935
Total 1taxes arc duc December 31, 1995

Lien date January 1, 1996

Penaltics and intcrest are added January 1, 1996

Tax sale May 1, 1996

Assessed values are established by the Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor each year on a uniform basis at the
following ratios of assessed value to fair market value.

}10% land 15% machinery
10% residential improvements 15% commercial improvements
15% industrial improvements 25% public service properties, excluding land
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES (Continved)

A revaluation of all property is required after 1978 to be completed no less than every four years. The last
revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1, 1992, Total asscssed valuc was $153,981,170 for the 1995
calendar year. Louisiana state law exempts the first $7,500 of assessed valuc of a taxpayer's primary residence from
parish property taxes. This homestead exemption was $36,527,570 of the assessed valuc in calendar year 1995,

State law requires the Sheriff 1o collect property 1axes in the calendar year in which the assessment is made.
Propcrty taxes become delinquent January 1 of the following year. If taxes are not paid by the due date, taxes bear
interest at the rate of 1.25% per month until the taxes are paid. After notice is given 10 the delinquent taxpavers,
the Sheniff i1s required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana to sell the least quantity of property necessary
to sctile the 1axes and interest owed.

All property taxes are recorded in the General, Special Revenue Funds (Maintenance Funds) and Debt Service
Funds on the basis explained in Note 1. Revenues in such funds are recognized in the accounting period in which
they become measurable and available.  Property taxes arc considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax
levy.

Delinquent taxcs considered to be uncollectible are not recorded as revenucs. Property taxes receivable are
considered available becausce they are substantially collected within 60 days subsequent 1o year end.

The tax roll 1s not prepared by the tax assessor until November of cach year; therefore, the amount of 1995
property taxes 1o be collecled within the next year is not known. As a result, no property tax receivable for 1995
taxes 1s included on the accompanying combined balance sheet.

The following is a summary of authorized and levied (tax rate per $1,000 Assessed Valuc) ad valorem taxes:

Date of Voter Authorized Levied Expiration
Approval Millage Millage Date _
Parish-wide taxes:
Constitutional Statutory 4.95 4.95 Statutory
Spccial Maintenance
and Operation Jan. 21, 1989 522 5.10 1998
Special repair and equipment Jan. 21, 1989 522 5.10 1998
Maintenance and operation Jan. 16, 1993 12.00 12.00 2002
District taxes:
Marmnienance and Operations
Ruston School District #1 Apr. 5, 1994 3.05 3.05 2003
Simsboro School District #3 July 2, 1985 3.00 2.98 1995
Dubach School District #5 Jan, 21, 1989 3.00 2.86 1998
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 4 - LEVIED TAXES (Continued)

Authonized Levied Expiration

Millage Millage Datc
District taxes: (Continued)
Bond and Intcrest
Ruston School District #1 Variable 17.00 2005
Simsboro School Distnct #3 Variable 16.20 2006
Choudrant School District #6 Variable 45.00 2007

The difference between authorized and levied millages are the result of the reasscssment of taxable propertly
required by Article 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974,

NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The School Board maintains a cash pool that 1s available for use by all funds. Positive book cash balances arc
displayed on the combined balance sheet as “cash and cash equivalents.” Negative book cash balances are included
in “due to other funds” on the combined balance sheet.

Individual fund cash deficit balance at Junc 30, 1996 was as follows:

Cash
Fund Balance
Title VI $ 1,175
Adult Education 6.423
Special Programs 27,316
Thitle IV (Drug Frec) 452

The School Board maintains a sweep account for the operating funds of the School Board. Each fund's cash
account 1s swept daily for excess cash. Excess amounts are invested 1in an overnight repurchase agreement.

At vear-end, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was $3,839,126 and the bank balance was
$7,007.862. Of the bank balance, $380,220 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
the School Board's agent in the School Board's name (GASB Category 1). The remaining balance of $6,627,642

was collateralized with securitics held by the pledging financial institutions' trust department or agent but not in the
School Board's name (GASB Category 3).

Even though the pledged securitics are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB
Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imiposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise
and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed
to pay deposited funds upon demand.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE & - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

During the year, the School Board invested in United States government trcasury bills, treasury notes, and
certificates of deposit. The U. S. government investments are held in the School Board's name through a book-entry
sysiem at the Federal Reserve Bank, thercfore, these investments were considered to be Category 2 which includes
investments that are collateralized with securitics held by the pledging financial nstitution's trust department or 1ts
safckecping agent in the School Board's name.

Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk:

1. Insured or registered, or securitics held by the School Board or its agent 1n the School Board's name.
2. Uninsured and unregistered, with securitics held by the counter party's trust department or agent 1n the
School Board's name.

3. Uninsured and unregistered, with secunties held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent
but not in the School Board's name.

At year end, the School Board investment balances were as follows;

Carrying Market

Category Amount Value
] 2 3
US Government sccuritics $1,269951 $3.970,000 $ - $5,23995})  $5,239,207

Investments arc recorded at cost.

Duc to higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the School Board's investment in U. S. treasury bills
for which the underlying securitics were held by the School Board, increased significantly. As a result, the amounts
that were in catcgory 1 at those tuimes were substantially higher than at year end.

A reconcihation of cash and investments as shown on the Combined Balance Sheet for the prnimary government
follows:

Carrying amount of deposits $3,839,126
Carrying amount of investments 5,239,951
Total $9.079.077
Cash and cash cquivalents $7.119,077
Investments 1,960,000
Total $9.079.077
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOIL BOARD
Ruston, Lomsiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 340, 1996

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

The receivables of $249.534 at June 30, 1996, are as follows:

Special Debt Internal
General Revenue Service Service
Class of Reccivable Fund Funds Funds Fund Total
Taxes:
Ad valorem $35,361  $12,804 $28.565 $ - § 76,730
Intergovernmental - grants:
Federal 2.743 110,837 - . 113,580
State 6,815 47,052 . - 53,807
Accounts - - _ - 5.357 5.357
Tolal $44919  $170,693 $28.565 $5,357 $249.534
NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS
The changes 1n general fixed assets are as follows:
Balance Balance
July 1, 1995 Additions Deletions June 30, 1996
Land $ 360,835 $ - $ - $ 360,835
Buildings 27,217,225 49 990 - 27,267,215
Improvements other than buildings 84,322 . - 84,322
Fumniture and cquipment 4,779,947 310,097 55,549 5,034 495
Vehicles 1,530,760 282 850 3,300 1.810.310
Total $33.973,089 $642.937 $58. 849 $34.557.177

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Substantially all School Board employees participate in either the Teachers' Retirement System or the School
Employees' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employec retirement
systems (PERS). Each system is admimstered and controlled at the State level by a separate board of trusiees, with
contribution rates and benefit provisions approved by the Louisiana Legislature. Participation in the Teachers'
Retirement System 1s divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan and the Teachers' Plan A, In gencral,
professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are members of the Louisiana
Tcachers® Retirement System (TRS); other employees, such as custodial personncl and bus dnivers, are members
of the Louisiana School Employecs’ Retirement System (LSERS). Generally, all full-time ¢mployecs are eligible
to participate 1n the sysicm.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

With respect 1o the Teachers' Retirement System Regular Plan, normal retircment 1s at age sixty with ten years
of service, or at any age with twenty years of service. The formula for annual maximum retirement benefits is
gencrally 2% (with less than twenty-{ive years of service) or 2.5% (with twenty-five or more years of service) times
the years of creditable scrvice times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months (plus $300
applicable to persons becoming members prior 1o July 1, 1986).

Under the Teachers' Retirement System Plan A, normal retirement 1s generally at any age with 30 or morc years
of creditable service, at age fifty-five with at least twenty-five years of creditable service and at age sixty with at
lcast ten years of creditable service. The retirement benefit formula is gencrally 3% times the years of creditabic
service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months plus $24 per year of service.

Emplovces participating in the School Employees' retirement System are cligible for normal retirement after
thirty years of service, or after twenty-five years of service at age fifty-five or aftcr ten years of service at age sixty.
The maximum retirement allowance is computed at 2.5% times the highest thirty-six months of average salary, times
the years of service plus a supplement of $2.00 per month times the years of scrvice.

Benefits of the systems are funded by employee and employer contributions. The contribution rates {(as a
percentage of covered salaries) arc established by state law as follows:

Emplovee Emplover
Louisiana Tcachers”™ Retirement System:
Regular 8.00% 16.50%
Plan A 9.10% 16.50%
Louisiana School Employecs™ Retirement System 6.35% 6.00%
Louisiana Parochial Employecs™ Retirement
July 1, 1995 - December 31, 1995 9.50% 8. 00%
January 1, 1996 - Junc 30, 1996 9.50% 7.25%

The School Board's employer contribution for the TRS, as provided by statc law, is funded by the State of
L.ouisiana through annual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the
School Board. For the LSERS, the School Board's employer contnibution is funded by the State of Louisiana
through annual appropriations.

In addition, the employer docs not remit to the Teachers' Retirement System, Regular Plan or Plan A, the
employer's contribution for the professional improvement program (PIP) portion of payroll. The PIP contribution
is made directly to the Retirement System by the State of Louisiana.

Benefits granted by the retircment systems are guaranteed by the Statc of Louisiana under provisions of the
Louisiana Constitution of 1974, For the yvear ended June 30, 1996, the total payroll for the School Board amounted
to $17,798.059. The employec and emplover contributions and total current-year payroll of covered employcecs for
1996, arc as follows:




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 8 - REYIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

.................. TRS........c,
Regular Plan A LSERS Total
Employec contribution ) $ 1,216,355 $ 33,792 $ 105,850 $ 1,355,997
Employer contribution 2,509,568 61,272 100,014 2,670,854
Total covered current-year payroll 15,204,393 371,342 1,666,884 17,242,619

Although contributions are determined by statute, actuarial contributions are determined for the Systems. The
Systems' (TRS and LSERS) actuarially required contribution from all sourccs was $391.7 million and $10.7 million,
respectively. The required contribution represents 16.16 and 5.23 percent, respectively, of salarics for the year
ended Junce 30, 1996.

The "pension benefit obligation” 1s a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits,
adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as
a result of employce service to-date. The measure, which is the actuarial present value of credited projectied benefits,
1s intcnded to help users assess the Systems' funding status on a going-concern basis, asscss progress made 1n
accumulating sufficicnt assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among PERS and employers., The
Systems do not make separate measurements of asscts and pension benefit obligations for individual employers.
The pension benefit obligations at June 30, 1996 for the Systems, each as a whole, the Systems' net assets available
for benefits on that date (valued at market), and the resulting vnfunded (overfunded) pension benefit obligations
werc as follows:

Schoo)
Teachers' Employecs'
Retirement Retircment
Svstem System
Pension Benefit Obligation $10,570.,300,000 $ 834,345 876
Net Assets Available for Bencfits 6.081.700.000 062.833.541
Unfunded (Overfunded) Pension
Benefit Obligation $ 4.488.600.000 $(128.487,665)

The School Board's total actuarially determined contribution requirements as a percentage of total contributions
requircd of all entities for the ycar ended June 30, 1996 were as follows:

Teachers' Retirement System 64%
School Employees' Retirement System 81%

Ten-year historical trend information showing each System's progress 1s accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due 1s presented in each System's respective June 30, 1996 annual financial report.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL, BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 9 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In accordance with State Statutes, the Lincoln Parish School Board provides certain continuing health care and
life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the School Board's employees become chgible

for these benefits if they reach normal retirement ape while working for the School Board. These benefits for
retirecs and similar benefits for active employees were provided through a self-insurance program; whosc monthly
premiums are paid jointly by the employees and the School Board. The School Board recognizes the cost of provid-
ing these benefits (the School Board's portion of premiums) as an expenditure when the monthly premiums are duc,
which was $448,253 for 1996. The cost of retiree benefits totaled $635,753 for 1996 for approxtmately 250 retirees.

NOTE 10 - SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The payables of $5,100,543 at June 30, 1996, are as follows:

Special Internal
General Revenue Service
Fund Funds Funds Total
Salaries and withholding $1,948 938 $232.221 $ - $2.181,159
Accounts 184284 35,838 14,379 254 501
Incurred but not reported claims _ . - 263453 __ 263453
Total $2.133.222 $288.059 $277 832 $2.699.113

NOTE 11 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

At Junc 30, 1996, employecs of the School Board have accumulated and vested $1,282,568 of employec lcave
benefits, which was computed in accordance with GASB Codification Scction C60. This amount is hot expected

to be paid from current available resources; therefore the liability of $1,282.568 is recorded within the general
jong-term debt account group.

NOTE 12 - LEASES

The School Board records items under capital lcases as an asset and an obligation in the accompanying
financial statements. The following is an analysis of equipment under capital leases:

Type 13 Buses 5 Buses Total
School buses $447 546 $190,269 $637.815




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 12 - LEASES (Continued)

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, togcther with the present

value of the net minimum lease payments, as of June 30, 1996:

Fiscal Year 13 Buses 5 Busces Total
1996-1997 $ 59,004 $ 25,085 $ 84,089
1997-1998 59,004 25,085 84,089
1998-1999 59,004 25,085 84,089
1999-2000 59,004 25,085 84,089
2000-2001 59,004 25,085 84,089
2001-2003 118.009 50,170 168.179
Total minimum lcase payments 413,029 175,595 588,624
Less amounts representing interest 92,252 39.218 131,470
Present value of net minimum leasc payments $320.777 $136,377 $457.154

NOTE 13 - CHANGES IN AGENCY FUND DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS

A summary of changes in Schoo! Activity Agency Fund deposits duc others for the year ended June 30, 1996
1s as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 1995 Additions Deductions  Jung 30, 1996
Agency funds:
School activity $277.003 $1,249.972 $1,252,283 $274.692

NOTE 14 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended Junc 30, 1996:

Capital
Notes Lease Compcnsated Bonded
Payable Obligation _ Absences Dcbl Total
Balance, July 1, 1995 $ - $527,694 $ 998452 §$15230,000 $16,756,146
Additions 265,000 - 307,785 - 572,785
Deductions (54,831) ( 70.540) (23.669) (1,115,000) _(1.264.040)
Balance, Junc 30, 1996 $210,169 $457154  $1.282568 $14.115000 §$16,064,89]
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 14 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
All School Board bonds outstanding at June 30, 1996, in the amount of $14,325,169, arc general obligation

bonds with maturities from 1997 to 2007 and interest rates from 2.6 to 10.00 percent. Bond principal and ntcrest
payable in the next fiscal year are $1,180,000 and $804,360, respectively. The individual issues are as follows:

Final Interest Principal
Original Interest Payment to Outstanding
Issug Rates Duc Maturity  Junc 30, 1996

RUSTON NO. 1: |
December 1, 1991 - refunding issuc~ $11,930,000 4.50-6.40% 2005  $3,448,220  $10,330,000
SIMSBORO NO. 3:

February 1, 1978 710000 5.00-5.50% 2003 75,350 325.000

November 1, 1993 - refunding issuc 1670000 2.60-430% 2006 412,345 1,585,000
CHOUDRANT NO. 6:

February 1, 1978 530,000 5.00-550% 2003 56,650 245 000

April 1, 1987 535000 6.75-10.00% 2007 224 492 455,000

November 1, 1993 - refunding issuc 1255000 2.60-430% 2006 292,240 1,175,000
SERIES 1995 SINKING 265,000 5.34% 2000 36,980 210,169

Total 4546277  $14.325.169

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad valorem
tax levy on taxable property within the parish. At June 30, 1996, the School Board has accumulated $2,034,908 1n
the debt service funds for future debt requirements. The bonds are due as follows:

Notes Bonds
Ycar Ending Principal Intcrest Principal Interest
June 30, Paymenls Payments Payments Payments Total
1997 $ 47,000 $12,896 $ 1,180,000 $ 804,360 § 2,044,256
1998 50,000 10,306 1,255,000 741,107 2,056,413
1999 53,000 7,556 1,335,000 672,800 2,068,356
2000 56,000 4,646 1,420,000 598,978 2,079,624
2001 4,169 1,575 1,515,000 519,272 2,040,016
Thereafter - - 7,410,000 1,172,780  __8.582.780
Total $210,169 $36,979 $14.115,000 $4,509.297  $18.871.445

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from incurring

long-term bonded debt in excess of 33 percent of the assessed value of taxable property. At Junc 30, 1996, the
statutory limit is $50,813,786, and outstanding bonded debt totals $14,115,000.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Due Froms/Due Tos:

Due from Duc 10
General Fund $40,754
Special Revenue Funds:
Title 1 $ 5,388
Adult Education 6,423
Title VI | 1,175
Spccial Programs 27,316
Title IV (Drug-Free) 452
Dcbt Service Funds:
Ruston #1 2,804
Choudrant #6 2.804
Total $43.558 $43,558

NOTE 16 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

Reserved for Instruction, Repairs and Construction

At Junc 30, 1996, the General Fund reflects a balance of $461,632 (Statement A) from the salcs and usc
{axes. One-third of the one-half cent sales tax, approved May 19, 1979, and rededicatcd March 8, 1988, 1s
dedicated for constructing, acquiring, erecting, improving, and/or repairing schools and school-rclatec
facilities, and for paying the cost of utilities therefore, and for improving instruction, providing instructiona
materials and student services and curriculum enrichment, including salaries for overstaffed instructiona
positions, in and for the public schools.

Reserved for Salary Improvements

The General Fund reflects a balance of $34,555 (Statement A) at Junc 30, 1996, from the sales and use
taxes. Two-thirds of the one-half cent sales tax, approved May 19, 1979, and rededicated March 8, 1988, and
the onc-half cent sales tax approved January 16, 1993, is dedicated for paying salaries, retirement and other

benefits.

Reserved for Bond Surplus

The General Fund reflects a balance of $12,773 (Statement A) at June 30, 1996 for bond surplus. This
represents the residue of the Dubach District No. 5 Debt Service Fund after all bond and interest obligations
were paid off. These funds can only be used in the same manner in which the original bond issuc was
approved by the voters.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louistana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 16 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES (Continued)

Reserved for Debt Service

The Debt Service Funds reflect a balance of $2,034,908 (Statement A) at June 30, 1996 for debt scrvice.
This balance is reserved for the payment of principal and interest on bonded debi.

NOTE 17 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

Litigation

The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits. Management and legal counsel for the School Board
belicve that the potential claims against the School Board not covered by insurance would not materially affcct
the School Board's combined financial position.

Self-Insurance

The School Board is partially sclf-insured for workers' compensation, and hcalth insurance coverage.
Claims are funded through employee contributions and operating funds of the School Board. The School
Board maintains stop-loss coverage with an insurance company for claims in excess of $150,000 and $75,000
per occurrence for workers' compensation insurance coverage, and for health coverage, respectively.  All

known claims filed and an cstimate of incurred but not reportied claims based on experience of the School
Board are made and accrued as necessary in the financial statements.

Grant Disallowance

The School Board participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs. Although the grant
programs have been audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984 through Junc 30, 1996, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits and resolution of previously identificd questioned
costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the School Board expects such amounts, 1if any, to be immaterial.

Tax Arbitrage Rebate

Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest carned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest expense prior
to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Management
belicves there 1s no tax arbitrage lhability at year end.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Loutsiana

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School Board initiated a risk management program for workers' compensation in fiscal year 1991.
Premiums are paid mto the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund by all other funds and are available 1o pay
claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. During fiscal year 1996, a total of $44 646 was paid
in benefils and admimstrative costs. An excess coverage msurance policy covers individual claims in excess of
$150,000. An amount for self-insurance losses of $14,379 has been accrued as a hability and was calculated by the
third-party administrator, Interfund premiums arc based primarily upon the individual funds' claims expericnce and
arc reported as expenditurcs in the individual funds.

The Internal Service Fund - workers' compensation incurred a net income (loss) for the fiscal year 1996 of
$(41,707) and at June 30, 1996 had a retained earnings of $109,740.

The School Board initiated a risk management program for employees health insurance in fiscal ycar 1992,
Premiurns are paid into the Group Health Insurance Internal Service Fund by all other funds and are available 1o pay
claims, claim rescrves and adminustrative costs of the program. During fiscal vear 1996 a total of $3,180,545 and
$118,404, respectively, was paid in benefits and administrative costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers
individual claims in excess of $75,000. Interfund premiums arc based primarily upon the individual funds' payroll
and are reporied as expenditures in the individual funds. The incurred but not reported claims at year end of
$263,453 has been accrued as a hability based upon the third party administrator's calculation using historical claim
experience.

The Internal Service Fund - Group Health Insurance incurred a net loss during the fiscal year 1996 of $228,260
and at Junc 30, 1996 had a retained deficit of $153,683.

Changes 1n the claims amount m previous fiscal years were as follows:

Beginning of Claims and Benefit Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes 1n Payments Fiscal
Liability Estimates and Claims Year~-End
Workers' Compensation:
1994-1995 $34,212 $ 6,584 $£29 843 $10,953
1995-1996 10,933 47,925 44,499 14,379

37




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Loutsiana |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Beginning of Claims and Benefit Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Payments Fiscal
Liability Estimates and Claims Year-End
Health Insurance:
1994-1995 $228,522 $2,848,889 $2,836,120 $241,291]
1995-1996 241,291 3,202,707 3,180,545 263,453

The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past threc fiscal years.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

GENERAL FUND

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which arc not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.
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ASSETS
Cash
Receivables
Due from other funds
Deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 1996

1967
GENERAL BOND SURPLUS SALES TAX
ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS

$ 2,774,837 $ 12,773 3 31,306
25,685 0 0
40,754 0 0
99,476 0 0

P 2.940,752 $ 12,773 3 31,306

Liabilities:
Accounts, salaries and other payables $ 1,809,801 % C$ 10,283
Total Liabilities ) 1,.809.801 $ 0% 10,283
Equity
Fund Balances:
Reserved for instruction, repairs ang construction $ 0% 0% 0
Reserved for salary improvements 0 0 0
Reseved for bond surplus O 12,773 0
Unreserved and undesignated fund balance 1,130,951 21,023
Total Equity $ 1,130,851 % 12,773 § 21,023

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

$ 2940752 % 12,773 $ 31,306
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Schedule 1

1978 1993 1983
SALES TAX SALES TAX AD VALOREM
ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS TAX ACCOUNTS TOTAL

$ 693,477 % 1,022,676 $ 860,634 $ 5,404,703
0 0 19,234 44919
0 0 O 40,754
0 0 0 99,476

$ 693477 3 1,022,676 $ 888,868 $ 5,589,852

$ 197.290 $ 49352 $ 66496 $ 2,133,222
$ 197,290 $ 49,352 $ 66,496 $ 2,133,222
$ 461,632 % 0$ 0% 461,632
34,555 0 0 34,555

0 0 12,773

0 973,324 822,372 2.047 670

$ 496,187 $ 073,324 $ 822372 % 3,456,630

$ 693477 § 1,022,676 $ 888,868 $ 5,589,852
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOQOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNTS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Sales and use
Interest earnings
Other
State sources:
Equalization
Other
Federal sources:

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs
Special programs
Other instructional programs
Support services:
Student services
Instructional staff support
General administration
School administration
Business services
Plant services
Student transportation services
Food services
Community service program
Facilities acquisition and construction
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and bank charges

Total I-xpenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EALANCES AT END OF YEAR

June 30, 1996

1967
GENERAL BOND SURPLUS SALES TAX
ACCOUNTS  ACCOUNTS  ACCOUNTS
$ 1,244,819 % 0% 0
0 0 2,036,881
153,741 635 21,811
372,028 0 72,159
15,232,067 0 0
632,082 0 0
127,204 0 0
$ 17,762,811 $ 635 %  2.130,851
0,716,475 $ 0% 1,194,744
1,724,689 0 312,925
1,024,784 0 87,910
568,393 0 50,568
715,822 0 65,198
223 646 0 32,939
1,303,010 0 118,385
270,146 0 16,420
668,120 0 71,528
1,285,676 0 120,996
2,171 0 58,637
2,131 0 0
99 445 0 0
31,026 0 0
21,292 0 0
17,656,826 $ 0$ 2130250
105,085 $ 635 $ 601
1,024,966 12,138 20,422
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Schedule 2

1979 1993 1993
SALES TAX SALES TAX AD VALOREM
ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS TAXACCOUNTS TOTAL
0% 0% 1,375,007 $ 2,619,826
2,036,881 2,036,881 0 6,110,643
49,588 73,023 34,676 333,344
175 0 0 444 362
¢ 0 O 15,232,067
0 0 0 632,982
0 0 C 127,204
2,086,644 3 2,109,904 $ 1,409,683 $ 25,500,428
1,229,622 § 1,039,184 367,161 § 13,547,186
140,977 167,916 6,878 2,343,385
144,828 135,411 27,555 1,420,488
32,823 37,848 2,126 691,758
135,054 120,672 2,565 1,039,351
28,704 24 591 138,765 448,645
75,040 76,164 44,805 1,617,404
10,642 8.624 728 306,560
49,049 54,078 364,664 1,207,439
75,685 87,273 211,547 1,781,187
86,820 100,344 0 247,972
O 0 0 2,131
38,600 0 0 138,045
0 C 39,5616 70,542
0 0 14,448 35,740
$ 2047894 % 1842,105 % 1,220,758 $ 24,897,833
$ 38,750 % 267,799 § 188,825 % 602,595
457 437 705,625 633,547 2,854,035
$ 496,187 % 973324 $ 822372 3 3,456,630
|




L INCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND (GENERAL ACCOUNTS)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 3
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:

Ad valorem $ 1,221,000 $ 1,244 816 § 23,819
Interest earnings 165,000 163,711 (11,289)
Cther 177.800 372,028 164,228

State sources:
Equalization 15,230,496 15,232,067 1,571
Other 651,703 632,982 (18,721)
Federal sources: 108 475 127,204 17,729
Total Revenues 17,555 474 17.762.811 $ 207 337
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs 0,827,948 89,716,475 § 111,473
Special programs 1,730,420 1,724,689 5,731
Other instructional programs 997 800 1,024,784 (26,984)
Support services:
Student services 581,120 568,393 12,727
Instructional staff support 723,875 715,822 8,053
General administration 294,580 223,646 70,944
School administration 1,327,750 1,303,010 24,740
Business services 251,400 270,146 (18,746)
Pilant services 663,750 668,120 (4,370)
Student transportation services 1,291,883 1,285,676 6,217
Central services 15,050 0 15,050
Food services 2,200 2,171 29
Community service program 4,700 2,131 2,569
Facilities acquisition and construction 51,000 99,445 (48,445)
Debt service:
Principal retirement 31,026 31,026 0
Interes! and bank charges 21,282 21,282 0
Total Expenditures $ 17815814 $ 17,656,826 $ 158,988
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (260,340) $ 105,880 ¥ 366,325
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,023 226 1,023,226 0

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 762 886 % 1,129,211 § 366,325
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND (BOND SURPLUS ACCOUNTS)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 4
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Interest earnings $ 550 $ 635 $ 85
Total Revenues $ 550 $ 635 § 85
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 550 % 635 § 85
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,138 12.138 0
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 12,688 $ 12773 85




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND (1967 SALES TAX ACCOUNTS)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis)} and Actual

REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Sales and use
Interest earnings

Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regqular programs
Special programs
Other instructional programs
Suppott services:
Student services
Instructional staff support
General administration
School administration
Business services
Plant services
Student transportation services

Food services

Total Expenditures

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
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Schedule 5
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
1,900,000 $ 2036881 % 135,881
14.000 21811 7.811
70,000 72159 2.159
1.984 000 $ 2130851 § 146 851
1213300 $ 1,184 744 § 18,556
203,000 312,925 (109,925)
50,045 87.910 (28,865)
57.100 50,568 6,632
£3.600 65 188 (11,598)
33,400 32,939 467
98,700 118,385 (19,685}
18,400 16,420 1,980
63,025 71,528 (8,503)
115,760 120,896 (5.235)
64670 £8 637 _ 6,033
1,980,000 § 2,130,250 § (150.250)
4000 % 601 % (3,399)
20422 20422 0

$ 24,422 $ 21,023 $ (3,399)
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - GENERAL FUND (1979 SALES TAX ACCOUNTS)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996

REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Sales and use

Interest earnings
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs
Special programs
Other instructional programs
Support services:
Student services
Instructional staft support
General administration
Scheol administration
Business services
Plani. services
Student transportation services
Food services
Facilities acquisition and construction

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
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Schedule 6
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 1,900,000 $ 2,036,881 % 136,881
30,000 49 588 19,588
0 175 175
e 1830000 $ 2086644 % 156 644
$ 1288472 1,229,622 $ 58,850
121,800 140,977 (19,177)
130,000 144 828 (14,828}
24 875 32,823 (7,948)
143,665 135,094 8 571
24 050 28,704 (4,654)
62,800 75,040 (12,240)
13,680 10,642 3,038
40,900 49 049 (8,149)
69,680 75,695 (6,015)
78,950 86,820 (7,870)
40.000 38,600 1,400
$ 2038872 % 2.047 894 $ (9.022)
$ (108,872) $ 38,750 % 147 622
457 437 A57 437 0

$ 348,565 % 496,187 $ 147,622




REVENULES
Local sources:

Taxes:

Ad valorem
interest earnings
Federal spurces.

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current;

Instruction:

LINCOLN PARISH SCHROOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS GENERAL FUND (1993 AD VALOREM TAX ACCOUNTS)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996

Regular programs
Special programs
Other instructional programs

Suppor! services:

Student services
Instructional staff support
General administration
Schon! administration
Business services

Plant services

Student transportation services

Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and bank charges

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
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Schedule B
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 1,343,000 § 1,375,007 $ 32,007
20,000 34 576 14 576
2.160 0 (2.160)

$ 1,365,160 $ 1,400 683 $ 44 423
$ 401,600 $ 367,161 $ 34,439
8.000 6,878 1,122

31,000 27 555 3,445
2,100 2,126 (26)
2,500 2,565 (65)

140,500 138,765 1,735
41,950 44 B0b (2,855)

150 728 22
342,205 364 664 (22,459)

319,736 211,547 108,189

39,516 39,516 0

14,448 14 448 0

$ 1,344,305 $ 1,220,758 § 123,547
$ 20855 % 188,825 ¢ 167,970
633,647 633,547 0

$ 654,402 $ 822372 % 167,870




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

TITLE I - LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES
(Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, Title 1)

To improve the educational opportunities of educationally deprived children by helping them succeed m the
regular school program, attain grade level proficicncy and improve achievement in basic and more advanced skills.
Primarily for provision of compensatory instructional activities to educationally deprived children that reside in Jow-
income areas and have been selected on the basis of a needs assessment. Services supplement, not supplant, those
normally provided by statc and local educational agencies.

TITLE VI
(Elementary and Sccondary Education Act of 1965, Title 1)

To assist state and local educational agencics 1o improve elementary and secondary education.

Grants arc awarded for students at risk of fatlure in school; instructional materials; school-wide improvements
and cffizctive schoo! programs; training and professional development; early identification of children with reading
disabilitics, personal excellence of students and student achicvements; and innovative enhancements projects to the
educational program and climate of the school.

ADULT EDUCATION
(Adult Education Act, Part B)

To improve cducational opportunities for adults and to encourage the establishment of adult education
programs that will enable all adults to acquire basic educational skills necessary to function in a literate socicty,
enable adults who so desire to complete secondary school, and enable adults to benefit from job training and
retraining programs and obtain productive employment to more fully enjoy the benefits and responsibilitics of
citizenship.

Special cmphasis is given to programs of instruction in computational skills and 1n speaking, reading, or
writing English for those adults who are educationally disadvantaged.

TITLE II - EISENHOWER MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE EDUCATION STATE GRANTS
(Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965, Title 1)

To improve the skills of teachers and the quality of instruction in mathematics and science, also to INCrease
the accessibility of such instruction to all students.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE

(National School Food Service Program (National School Lunch Act of 1946)
(School Breakfast Program (Child Nutrition Act of 1966)

(Food Dhstribution (Commodities) (National School Lunch Act of 1946 and
Nutrition Act of 1966)

To assist through cash grants and food donations in providing a nutritious breakfast and lunch service for
school students and 10 encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural commoditics.

PARISH-WIDE MAINTENANCE

The Parish-Wide Mainienance Fund accounts for the proceeds of a specific parish-wide ad valorem tax to be
uscd for maintenance and upkeep of school facilities.

RUSTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION

The Ruston School District No. 1 Maintenance and Operation Fund accounts for the proceeds of a 3-mil Ruston
School District ad valorem tax to be used for the utilities of the schools in the district.

SIMSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION

The Simsboro School District No. 3 Maintenance and Operation Fund accounts for the proceeds of a 3-mil
Simsboro School District ad valorem tax to be used for the utihties of the schools 1n the district.

DUBACH SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. §
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION

The Dubach School District No. 5 Maintenance and Operation Fund accounts for the proceeds of a 3-mil
Dubach School District ad valorem tax to be used for maintaining and operating the school facilitics in the district
including the payment of the cost of the utilities.

SPECIAL PROGRAMS

The Special Programs Fund accounts for various federal and state grants to the School Board. All of the grants
are restricted for special purposes.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Concluded)

TITLE 1V - DRUG-FREE
(Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1966, Title V and Elementary and Secondary Education Act)

To cstablish state and local programs of alcohol and drug abuse education and prevention coordinated with
relatcd community efforts and resources.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 1996

SCHOOL
ADULT FOOD
TITLE | TITLE Vi EDUCATION TITLE Il SERVICE
ASSETS
Cash $ 47512 % C$ 0$ 128 $ 656,035
Receivables 41,060 1,175 10,595 1,505 0
Deposit 0 0 0 0 0
Inventory 0 0 0 0 43,628
TOTAL ASSETS $ 88572 % 1,176 % 10,595 $ 1,633 $ 699 663
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts, salaries and other payables 3 83,184 % 0% 4172 % 1,633 § 125,022
Due to other funds 5,388 1,175 6,423 0 0
Deferred revenues 0 0 0 0 18,105
Total Liabilities $ 88572 % 1,175 § 10,595 & 1633 % 143,127
Equity
Fund balances:
Reserved for inventory $ 0% 0% 0% 0C$ 43,628
Unreserved and undesignated 0 0 ] 0 512,908
Total Equity $ 0% 0$ 0% 0% 556,536

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 88 672 % 1,175 % 10,595 & 1,633 $ 699,663
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Schedule 9

SCHOOL, DISTRICTS

RUSTON NO. 1 SIMBSORO NO 3 DUBACH NG. 5
PARISHWIDE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE SPECIAL TITLE IV
MAINTENANCE & OPERATION & OPERATION _& OPERATION PROGRAMS _(DRUG FREE) TOTAL

$ 350,823 $ 31,598 $ 24,649 § 34018 0% 0% 1,144,763
8,184 3,824 680 116 91,313 12,241 170,693

2,500 0 0 0 0 0 2,500

0 0 0 0 0 0 43 628

$ 361,507 3 35422 25329 $ 34,134 $ 01313 $ 12,241 $ 1,361,584

$ 15,606 $ 5755 % 3649 % 3,133 § 34116 3 11,789 § 288,058
0 0 0 0 27,316 452 40,754

0 C 0 0 0 O 18,105

$ 15,606 3 5755 $ 3649 % 3133 % 61,432 $ 12,241 § 346918
$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 03 0% 43,628
345,901 28,667 21,680 31,001 29,881 0 071,038

$ 345901 % 29667 % 21,680 $ 31,001 % 29,881 % 0% 1,014,666

$ 361,607 $ 35422 % 25329 % 34,134 $ 01313 % 12,241 $ 1,361,584
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996

SCHOOL
ADULT FOOD
TITLE | TITLEVI  EDUCATION TITLE I SERVICE
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:

Ad Valorem $ 0% 0% 0% 0% 0
Interest earnings 0 0 0 0 31,047
Food service 0 0 0 0 384,354
Other 0 0 0 0 0

State sources:
Equalization 0 0 0 0 348,518
Other 0 0 25,724 0 0
Federal sources: 1,358,230 35,751 23610 24 609 1,387,606
Total Revenues $ 1358230 % 35751 § 43334 % 24600 $ 2,151,426
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Special Programs $ 0129638% 35,701 % 0% 24534 § 0
Other instructional programs 0 0 46,058 0 0
Support services:
Instructional staff support 268,055 0 1,726 0 0
General administration 20,836 o0 650 75 D
Plant services 48,825 0 0 0 0
Student transponrtation services 0 0 0 0 O
Food services O 0 0 0 2,034,842
Facilities acquisition and construction _ 107,576 0 0 0 0
Total Expenditures $ 1,358230 % 35751 % 49334 $ 24 609 $ 2.034 842
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 116,584
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Schedule 10

SCHOOL DISTRICTS
RUSTONNO.1 SIMSBORONO3 DUBACHNO.5
PARISHWIDE  MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE  MAINTENANCE SPECIAL TITLE IV
MAINTENANGCE & OPERATION & OPERATION & OPERATION _ PROGRAMS _(DRUG FREE) TOTAL
$ £84 514 $ 227,142 $ 34,207 § 62,588 % 0 % 0% 908,451
17,252 3,070 1,689 1,120 0 0 54 178
0 0 0 0 0 0 384,354
46,428 0 0 0 25,115 0 71,543
0 0 0 0 0 0 348,519
98,298 O 0 0 184,351 0 308,373
0 0 0 0 345,426 36,226 3,211,358
$ 746,492 $ 230,212 $ 35.806 $ 63,708 $ 554 892 $ 36,226 $ 5,286,776
$ 0 3% 0% 0 $ 0% 263,395 $ 0% 1,236,568
0 0 0 0 245,088 0 292,047
0 0 0 0 0 36,226 306,007
18,057 7,117 1,033 1,893 261 0 49,972
510,918 220,189 44 004 44,284 0 0 868,220
160,660 0 0 0 1,280 0 161,940
0 0 0 0 0 0 2,034,842
93,028 0 0 0 0 0 200,604
$ 782,663 $ 227.306 $ 45037 % 46,177 $ 510,025 $ 36,226 $ 5 150,200
$ (36,171) $ 2.906 $ (9,141) $ 17.531 $ 44 867 $ 0% 136,576
(CONTINUED)
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES

FUND BAILANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

SCHOOL
ADULT FOOD
TITLE | TITLE VI _EDUCATION TITLE ]I SERVICE
$ 0$ 03 0% 0% 0
$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 0
$ 0% 0% 0% 0 116,584
0 0 0 0 439,952

$ 0% 0% 09 0% 556,536
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Schedule 10

SCHOOL DISTRICTS
RUSTON NO.1 SIMSBORONO 3 DUBACHNO. b5
PARISHWIDE MAINTENANCE MAINTENANCE  MAINTENANCE SPECIAL (TITLE V)
MAINTENANCE & QOPERATION & QPERATION & OPERATION PROGRAMS DRUG FREE TOTAL
$ 555 $ 0% 0 $ 0% 0 $ 08 _ 555
$ 555 § 0% 0 % 0% 0 % 0% 555
$ (35.616) $ 2,906 $ 9,141) $ 17,531 $ 44,867 $ 0% 137,131
381,617 26,761 30,821 13,470 (14,986) 0 877,535

$ 345901 % 29667 $ 21,680 % 31,001 $ 20881 § 03 1,014,666

(CONCLUDED)
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
TITLE |
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1986 Schedule 11
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources: $ 1.495. 461 $ 1358230 % (138,231)
Total Revenues $ 1496 461 $ 1358230 % (138,231)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Special programs | $ 1,033,468 $ 912,938 § 120,530
Support services:
Instructional staff support 303,226 268,055 35,171
General administration 24,265 20,836 3.429
Plant services 84,001 48,825 35,176
Facilities acquisition and construction 51,501 107,576 (566,075)
Total Expenditures $ 1,496,461 3 1,358230 % 138,231
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% 0
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

TITLE VI
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual Schedule 12
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal scurces $ 45,156 $ 35,7561 § {9,405)
Total Revenues $ 45156 3 35751 % {(9,405)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction.
Special programs $ 44789 3 35,701 $ 9,088
Support services:
General administration 367 50 317
Total Expenditures ¥ 45156 $ 35,751 % 9,405
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 0$ 0% 0
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
ADULT EDUCATION

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 13
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
State sources:
Other $ 29511 § 25724 % (3,787)
Federal sources: 18,756 23,610 4 854
Total Revenues $ 48 267 $ 40334 $ 1,067
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Other instructional programs $ 44 878 46,958 § (2,080)
Support services:
Instructional staff support 3,188 1,726 1,462
General administration 201 650 (449)
Total Expenditures $ 48,267 $ 49,334 $ (1,067)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 D

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
TITLE i
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual Schedule 14
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources 3 30,007 & 24600 $ {5,488)
Total Revenues $ 30,097 $ 24,608 $ (5,488)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction:
Special programs $ 29,469 % 24534 § 4,835
Support services:
General administration 628 75 553
Tota! Expenditures $ 30,097 % 24 600 § 5.488
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

$ oy o 0



LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual Schedule 15
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES
Local sources:

Interest earnings $ 20,000 § 31,047 $ 11,047

Food service 397,760 384,354 (13,406)
State sources:

Equalization 350,339 348,519 (1,820)
Federal sources: 1,357,400 1,387,506 30,106

Total Revenues $ 2.125499 $ 2,151,426 $ 25,927
EXPENDITURES
Current: |

Food services _ 2,174 400 2034 B42 130.558

Total Expenditures $ 2.174400 % 2034842 % 139,558
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (48,901) § 116,584 $ 165,485
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 448 305 439,952 (8,353)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 399404 § 556,636 $ 157,132
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
PARISHWIDE MAINTENANCE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 16
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUEES
Local sources:.
Taxes:

Ad valorem $ 570,100 % 584514 $ 14,414
Interest earnings 10,000 17,252 7,252
Other 34,150 46 428 12,278

State sources:

Other 06,000 08,298 2,298
Federal sources: 000 0 (900)
Total Revenues $ 711,150 § 746 4902 % 35,342

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Support services;

General administration $ 19,000 $ 18,057 $ 043

Plant services 498,050 510,918 {12,868)

Student transportation services 193,300 160,660 38,640

Facilities acquisition and construction 58,500 93,028 (34,528)

Total Expenditures $ 774850 % 782663 $ (7.813)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (63,7000 $ {36,171} § 27 529
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets $ 600 $ 565 § (45)

Total Other Financing Sources {(Uses) $ 600 $ 555 $ (45)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (63,100) $ (35,616) $ 27,574
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 381,517 381.517 0
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 318417 % 345 901 27,484

65




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

RUSTON NO. 1 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 17
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem P 233,000 $ 227,142 $ (5,858)
Interest earnings 3,000 3,070 70
Federal sources. 550 0 (550}
Total Revenues $ 236550 $ 230,212 $ (6.338)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Support services:
General administration $ 7,200 $ 7117 $ 83
Plant services 224,600 220,189 4.411
Total Expenditures ¥ 231.800 % 227,306 $ 4 494
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 4750 % 2906 % {1,844)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,761 26.761 0

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

$ 31,511 % 29667 % (1.844)
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BCARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SIMSBORO NO. 3 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 18
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGETY ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:.
Taxes:

Ad valorem $ 38,000 $ 34207 $ (3,793)
Interest earnings 1,300 1,689 389
Total Revenues 3 39,300 $ 35806 $ (3,404)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Suppor services:

General adgministration $ 1,200 $ 1,033 § 1867

Plant services 36,000 44 004 (8.004)
Total Expenditures $ 37,200 $ 45037 $ (7,837)

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 2100 % (9,141) $ {11,241)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 30.821 30.821 0
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 32921 3 21,680 % (11,241)
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DUBACH NO. 5§ MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 19
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
L ocal solirces:
Taxes:

Ad valorem $ 60,000 $ 62,588 $ 2,588
Interest earnings 750 1,120 370
Total Revenues % 80,750 $ 63.708 $ 2,958

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Suppoit services:

General administration $ 1,400 $ 1,803 § (493)

Plant services 56,500 44 284 12,216
Total Expenditures $ 57,900 % 46,177 $ 11,723

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 3 2850 % 175631 % 14 681
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13.470 13.470 0

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

$ 16,320 $ 31,001 $ 14,681
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ULINCOLN PARISH SCHOODOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SPECIAL PROGRAMS
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual Schedule 20

For the Year Ended June 30, 1896

VARIANCE
BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE
_ (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Other $ 0% 25115 § 25,115
State sources:
Other 162,856 184,351 21,495
Federa! sources: 283,489 345,426 61,937
Total Ravenues $ 446,345 $ 554,802 3 108,547
EXPEND!ITURES
Current.
Instruction:
Special programs $ 299,347 % 263,395 % 35,952
Other instructional programs 142,883 245,089 {102,200)
Suppori, services:
General administration 4115 261 3,854
Student transportation services 0 _ 1,280 (1,280)
Total Expenditures $ 446,345 3 510,025 % (63,680)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 3 0% 44 867 % 44 867
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 {14,986} (14,986)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 29881 % 29 881
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
TITLE IV (DRUG FREE )
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual Schedule 21

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 37,003 $ 36,226 $ (777)
Total Revenues $ 37,003 § 36,226 $ (777}
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Support services.
Instructional staff support b 36,231 % 36,226 $ 5
General administration 772 0 772
Total Expenditures $ 37,003 % 36,226 ¥ 777
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% 0
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

RUSTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 1
SIMSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3

CHOUDRANT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 6

SERIES 1995 SINKING

The debt service funds are used 10 accumulate monies 10 pay outstanding bond issues and the Certificate of
Indebtedness. The bonds were i1ssued by the respective school districts to acquire lands for building sites and to
purchase, erect, and improve school buildings, equipment, and furnishings. The bond issues are financed by an ad
valorem tax on property within the legal boundanes of the respective schoo! districts.  The proceeds of the
Certificate of Indebtedness funded the cost of a computer lab for the Title I program. The certificate repayment is
being made by the Title ] program over a three-year period which began in the 1995-199¢6 fiscal year.
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ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Due to other funds
Matured bonds

Total Liabilities

Equity
Fund Balances:
Reserved for debt service

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 1996 Schedule 22
SCHOQOL DISTRICTS SERIES
RUSTON SIMSBORO DUBACH 1995

NO. 1 NO. 3 NO. & SINKING TOTAL
$ 5,548 $ 18,201 § 25616 % 17022 $ 66,387
1,435,000 265,000 260,000 0 1,960,000
21,461 3,712 3,392 0 28 565
2 804 0 0 0 2.804

$ 1464813 286913 $ 289,008 $ 17,022 $ 2,057,756

b 0% 0% 2,804 § 0% 2,804

0 11,532 8512 0 20,044
$ 0$ 11,632 $ 11,316 $ 0% 22,848
$ 1464813 % 275381 % 277,692 % 17,022 $ 2,034,908
$ 1464813 % 275381 % 277692 § 17,022 $ 2,034,808

$ 1464813 % 286913 $ 2890.008 $ 17022 $ 2,057,756
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes In Fund Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 Schedule 23
SCHOOL DISTRICTS SERIES
RUSTON SIMSBORO DUBACH 1995
NO. 1 NO. 3 NO. 5 SINKING TOTAL
REVENUES
Local sources:

Taxes:

Ad valorem $ 1266,768 % 186,038 $ 243 258 § 0 $ 1.696064
Interest earnings 80,488 16,116 13,488 0 110,092
Total Revenues $ 1347256 & 202,154 $% 256 746 $ 0 & 1,806,156

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General administration o 39671 % 5615 $ 7425 % 0 $ 52711
Facilities acquisition and construction 0 0 0 193,327 193,327
Debt Service:

Principal retirement 835,000 140,000 140,000 54,831 1,169,831

Interest and bank charges 670,943 05,894 106,633 10,309 883,779

Total Expenditures $ 1545614 § 241500 $ 254 058 $ 2568467 $ 2,269,648
EXCESS (Deficiency)OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ (188.358) & {39,355) § 2688 $ (258,467) $ (493,482)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from certificate

of indebtedness $ 0 % 0 $ 0% 275489 % 275,489

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) § 0 % 0% 08 275,489 $ 275,489
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES $ (198,358) $ (39,355) ¢ 2,688 § 17,022 % (218,003)
FUND BALANCES,

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,663,171 314,736 275,004 0 2.252 911
FUND BALANCES,

AT END OF YEAR $ 1464813 % 275381 $ 277692 3 17,022 $ 2034,908
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resourccs for and the payment of
benefits by the School Board's risk retention programs. The School Board maintains the following risk retention
funds:

Workers' Compensation ~— This fund, which began in fiscal year 1991, is uscd to account for the payment
of workers' compensation benefits, Fund revenues are derived from government allocations. These revenues
are planned to match: (1) expenses of insurance premiums in excess of risk retention amounts; (2) estimated
claim losses resulting from risk retention programs which include estimated habilities for claims incurred but
not yet reported at year end, and (3) operating expenses.

Group Health Insurance —— Monies in this fund are received from three sources: employee deductions from
pavroll, 1967 Sales Tax Fund and the Statc of Louisiana. Monics are used to pay cmployee health insurance
claims, the administrative cost to the insurance administrator for administration of the plan and processing
medical claims, cost of excess and specific insurance to protect the fund from exposure to large claims, hospital
pre-certification, and life insurance with an insurance carrier,
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE
Combining Balance Sheet Schedule 24
June 30, 1996

GROUP
WORKER'S HEALTH
COMPENSATION INSURANCE TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 124,119 $ 104,413 % 228,632
Receivables 0 5.357 5,357
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1241190 % 108,770 3% 233 889
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 14,379 $ 263453 § 277,832
Equity:
Retained Earnings (Deficit) $ 0% (153,683) $ (153,683)
Retained Deficit:
Reserved for future claims 109,740 0 109,740
TOTAL EQUITY $ 100,740 $ (153,683) $ (43 943)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY § 124,119 § 109,??0 § 233,889
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

Schedule 25
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit)
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
GROUP
WORKERS' HEALTH
COMPENSATION INSURANCE TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Premiums $ 98 % 3448879 % 3,448,977
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration $ 147 $ 118,404 $ 118,551
tnsurance Premiums 0 385,613 385,613
Claims 44,499 3,180,545 3,225,044
Total operating expenses $ 44646 $ 3,684,662 % 3,729,208
Operating income (loss) (44,548) (235,683) (280,231)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Earnings on investments 2,841 7,423 10,264
Net income (loss) $ (41,707) $ (228,260) $ (269,967)
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 151,447 % 74577 % 226,024
RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit) AT END OF YEAR 3 109,740 % (153.683) $ (43,943)
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

Schedule 26
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - INTERNAL SERVICE
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
GROUP
WORKERS' HEALTH
COMPENSATION [INSURANCE TOTAL

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (j0ss) $ (44,548) % (235,683) § (280,231)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided {(used) for operating

activities
Increase (decrease) in payable 3,426 22,162 25,588
(Increase) decrease in receivabie 0 4,806 4,806

Net cash provided {used) for

operating activities $ (41,122) $ (208,715) $ (240,837)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(increase) decrease in investments $ 69401 $ 257,716 % 327,116
Earnings on investments 2,841 7,423 10,264
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities $ 72,242 $ 265,138 % 337,380

Net increase {decrease) in cash and
cash ecquivalents $ 31,120 $ 56,423 % 87,643

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 92,989 47,990 140,988

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR $ 124119 § 104.413 $ 228 532
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

AGENCY FUNDS

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

The activitics of the various individual school accounts are accounted for in the School Activity Agency Fund.
- While the accounts arc under the supervision of the School Board, they belong to the individual schools or their
student bodics and are not available for use by the School Board.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana

Schedule 27
SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
Balance, Balance,
SCHOOL Beginning Additions Deductions Ending
Choudrant Eiementary $ 6,407 $ 27,797 $ 25,688 $ 8,516
Choudraint High School 9,399 119,511 120,316 8,594
Cypress Springs Elementary 0,414 70,627 65,431 14,610
Dubach High School 23,735 63,638 58,177 28,196
Glen View Eiementary 15,495 44 134 38,066 21,563
Hico Elementary 5,043 24,890 17,903 12,030
Hillcrest Elementary 10,520 29,371 32,514 7,377
l. A. Lewis School 5,502 44,067 39,390 10,179
Lincoln Center 1,139 6,378 5,333 2,184
Ruston Elementary 23,618 30,627 26,103 28,142
Ruston High School 107,385 475,226 506,352 76,259
Ruston Junior High 27,902 192,044 193,649 26,297
Simsboro High 31,444 121,662 123,361 29,745

Total $ 277,003 % 1240972 $ 1,252,283 $ 274 692




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group records the fixed assets of the School Board which arc used 1n
governmental fund-type orgamzations.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY SOURCE
June 30, 1996

Schedule 28
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
Land $ 360,835
Buildings 27,267,215
Improvements Other Than Buildings 84,322
Furniture and Equipment 5,034,495
Vehicles 1,810,310
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 34 567,177
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
From Capital Projects Funds $ 25,118,725
From General Fund 6,847,169
From Special Education Fund 269,366
From Federal Funds 1,207,791
From Vocational Education Funds 566,627
From School Food Service Fund 547 499
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 34 557,177
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -
BY FUNCTION

June 30, 1996

FUNCTION TOTAL LAND BUILDINGS

Instructional

Regular $ 27,626,695 % 349,525 % 25,404,603
Special 1,296,852 513,863
Total Instructiona! $ 28,923,547 % 349,525 $ 25,918 466

Supporting Services

Pupil Support 1,240,738 710,304
Instructional Staff 113,560
General Administration 147,965
School Administration 328,500
Business and Central Services 1,166,366 11.310 526,785
Operation and maintenance 523,958 111,650
Student Transportation 1,571,220
Food Service Operations 551,323
Total Support Services $ 5633630 % 11,310 % 1,348,749
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 34557177 % 360,835 ¢ 27,267,215

84




Schedule 29

IMPROVEMENTS
OTHER THAN FURNITURE AND
BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT VEHICLES
$ 19980 % 1,852,577 %
747,305 35,684
$ 19980 % 2,599,882 % 35,684
60,142 470,292
113,560
131,197 16,768
328,500
618,261
221,480 180,828
4,180 1,667,030
551,323
$ 64332 % 2434613 3% 1,774,626
$ 84,322 % 5034 495 % 1,810,310




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -

BY FUNCTION
Schedule 30
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
FUNCTION BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 1995 ADDITIONS DELETIONS JUNE 30, 1996
Instructional
Regular $ 27454208 % 220,351 % 47 864 $ 27,626,695
Special 1,273,854 22,998 1.296 852
Total Instructional $ 28,728,062 243.349 % A7.864 % 28,923,547

Supporting services

Pupil Support $ 1,184,123 % 56615 % $ 1,240,738
Instructional Staff 113,660 113,560
General Administration 144 887 10,763 7,685 147,965
Schoo! Administration 323,210 5,290 328,500
Business & Central Services 1,156,366 1,156,366
Operation & Maintenance 397,342 126,616 523,958
Student Transportation 1,418,286 166,234 3,300 1,571,220
Food Service Operations 507,253 44 070 551,323

Total Supporting Services $ 5,245,027 % 399,588 $ 10,9856 % 5,633,630

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 33,873089% 642,937 % 58 849 % 34557 177
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Long-Term Obligation Account Group represents a summary of the general long-term debt of the
Board.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

Schedule 31
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended June 30, 1996
Debt Service
Fund
July 1, 1995 Additions Payments Operations June 30, 1996

Amount available in Debt Service Fund $ 2,252,912 % $ $ (218,004) $ 2,034,908
Amount to be provided for retirement

of notes payable 265,000 54,831 210,169
Amount t¢ be provided for retirement

of bonds payable 12,877,088 1,115,000 218,004 12,080,092
Amount to be provided for retirement

of capital leases payable 527,694 70,540 457,154
Amount {¢ be provided for accrued

compensated absences 008 452 307,785 23.669 1,282,568

$ 16,756,146 % 572,785 % 1,264 040 $ 0% 16,064,891

Long-term debt payable:

General obligation notes payable $ $ 265,000 9 54,831 % $ 210,169

General obligation bonds payable 15,230,000 1,115,000 14,115,000

Capital leases payable 527,694 70,540 457,154

Compensated absences payable 008,452 307,785 23,669 1,282 568

$ 16,7566,146% 572785 % 1,264.040 % 0% 16,064,891
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FISCAL
... YEAR

1996
1995
1804
1993
1992
1991
1890
1989
1988

1887

NOTES:

(1) Includes State Contribution for School Employee’s Retirement System for 1987 and the years following.

(2)

TOTAL

24,897,833
24,088,012
23,074,036
19,994,855
21,543,711
20,024,718
18,789,180
16,494,562
16,023,824

15,408,083

— —— [ — i E =T

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

Ruston , Louisiana

GENERAL FUND

Last Ten Fiscal Years

_INSTRUCTION

17,311,059
16,810,357
15,699,971
14,073,082
14,792,300
10,660,624
9,672,378
8,509,308
7,644 748

7,637,819

STUDENT

SERVICES

$

691,758
678,234
601,926
611,163
676,731
408,790
405,885
394,725

300,972

441,417

INSTRUCTIONAL

STAFF
SUPPORT

$

1,039,351
040,452
937,417
850,302
735,436
601,708
538,242
561,874
425,938

506,282

(2) Beginning in Fiscal Year 1891-1992 employee benefits were distributed by function. Previously
the amounts were included in General Administration.

90

GENERAL

$

448,645
651,552
421,750
263,246
440,330
4,820,103
4,930,663
3,684,582

3,678,827

3,395,707 (1)




SUPPORTING SERVICES

SCHOOL

ADMINISTRATION

$ 1,617,404
1,641,970
1,642,278
1,394,066
1,353,406

980,182
892,393
820,006
766,604

703,647

BUSINESS
 SERVICES

$ 306,560
271,368
307,038
267,768
252,336
203,747
165,751
164,641
240,669

400,886

PLANT
SERVICES

$ 1,207,439
1,108,039
1,026,008

920,330

. 1,163,747

851,077
792,671
1,076,664
1,011,838

1,034,302

TRANSPORTATION

$

STUDENT

SERVICES

1,781,187
1,738,178
1,658,387
1,419,663
1,686,232
1,340,515
1,269,237
1,175,472
1,183,888

1,185,138

9]

MISCELLANEOQUS

$ 356,385
247,862
241,385
195,235
415,902
112,674
112,033
109,119

81,069

102,935

Table a

FACILITY
ACQUISITION
AND
CONSTRUCTION

$ 138,045

637,815

27,291
45,298

9,927
08,158

690,181




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BY SOURCE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

N LOCAL SOURCES )

FISCAL TOTAL AD VALOREM

_YEAR ____REVENUE _ TAX SALES TAX OTHER _ . TOTAL
1996 $ 25500428 $ 2,619,826 $ 6,110,643 $ 777,706 $ 9,508,175
1995 24,936,222 2,566,073 5,669,099 342,500 8,577,672
1994 23,122,077 2,255,271 4,851,024 219,544 7,325,839
1993 20,408,353 1,027,288 2,872,598 459,202 4,359,088
1992 20,754,770 1,065,711 2,797,624 280,775 4,144,110
1991 19,498,307 954,601 2,730,955 398,911 4,084,467
1990 19,084,596 943,671 2,591,806 405,679 3,941,156
1989 16,515,472 917,563 2,434,763 357,355 3,709,681
1988 15,472,229 903,640 2,325,898 - 274,200 3,503,738
1987 14,777,019 859,233 2,433,506 283,271 3,576,010
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Table b

STATE FEDERAL
. _SOURCES ... SOURCES
$ 15,865,049 $ 127,204
16,316,310 42,240
15,750,376 45,862
16,016,433 32,832
16,307,890 302,770
15,074,430 339,410
14,764,172 379,268
12,671,227 234,564
11,760,170 208,321
10,987,226 213,783




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES
Last Ten Calendar Years

. %96 185 Y894 W88
TAX TAX (1) TAX TAX (1) TAX TAX (1) TAX TAX (1)
RATES  LEVIES RATES  LEVIES RATES  LEVIES RATES  LEVIES

(Mills)  (Total Taxes) _ (Mills) ~ (Total Taxes) _ (Mills) (Total Taxes) _ (Mills) (Total Taxes

e, T ———

Constitutional School Tax (2) 4.95 $762,207 4.95 $738,197 495 $682,804 4.95 $670,476
Special School Tax (2) 510 785,304 5.10 760,567 5.10 703,495 5.10 690,793
Five Mill Maintenance School Tax (2) 5.10 785,304 5.10 760,567 5.10 703,495 5.10 690,793
1993 Ad Valorem Tax 12.00 1,847,774 12.00 1,788,569 12.00 1,655,283

Ruston School District No. 1
Mainlienance & Operation 3.05 320,946 3.05 320,453 3.05 299,038 3.05 292 B4B

Simsboro School Districtl No. 3
Maintenance & Operation 2.98 41,579 2.08 46 662 2.98 41,570 2.08 40,665

Dubach Schoo! District No.
Maintenance & Operation 2.86 69,526 2.86 52,049 2.86 46,216 2.86 46,756

Debt Service Taxes

Ruston School District No. 1 17.00 1,788,780 20.00 2,101,221 23.50 2,303,966 23.50 2,256,270
Simsboro School District No, 3 16.20 226,030 18.00 281,847 22.00 306,884 22.00 300,208
Choudrant School District No. 6 4500 397,042 5800 493393  62.00 519517 6200 _  499.753
TOTALS 11424 $7,024892 13204 $7,344525 14354 $7262268 13154 $5488,562

—_—— = —_—
_— —a - — —_——_————————— — — — _—— - . —_——— —

HOTES:
{1) Tax Levies (Total Taxes) represent the grand tolal of all taxes upon assessed valuation of property at applicable millage rates and includes

the total tax on amount of homestead exemptions.

(2) Actual Constitutional, Special School Tax Revenue differ from Tax Levies (Total Taxes) principally due to the amount of tax exempted
through the homestead exemption on assessed evaluation. Pan of this difference is received by the Board through Revenue Sharing from
State.
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Table ¢

Y92 .8y . 1990 1989 1988 L 1987
TAX TAX (1) TAX TAX (1) TAX TAX (1) TAX TAX (1) TAX  TAX(1) TAX  TAX (1)
RATES  LEVIES RATES  LEVIES RATES  LEVIES RATES LEVIES  RATES LEVIES  RATES  LEVIES

(Mills) (Total Taxes) _(Mills) (TotalTaxes) _ (Mils) (TotalTaxes) _(Mills) (TotalTaxes) (Mils) (TotalTaxes) _(Mils) (TotalTaxes

-————— .

506  $655744 506  $633,743 506  $630,922 506  $613.163 485  $594,202 485  $580,741
5.22 676,479 5.22 653,782 522 650,872 522 632,552 5.01 613,804 5.01 599,899
5.22 676,479 5.22 653,782 5.22 650,872 5.22 632,552 5.01 613,804 5.01 599,899
3.09 283,544 3.09 276,125 3.09 272,034 3.09 258,036 2.96 246,036 2.96 242,822
3.14 64,198 3.14 37326 3.14 35,827 3.14 35,586 3.00 35,243 3.00 33,075
3.00 47,586 3.00 44,686 3.00 46,326
2350 2,156,404 2500 2,233,956 26.50 2,332,975 2950 2463448 3200 2,659,846  32.00 2,625107
31.50 399,652 29.00 344,734 27.00 308,063 27.00 305996  25.00 293,693  25.00 275,623
6200 47241 4500 _  339.020 40.00 322,308 40.00 306,070 3000 234,207  30.00 231,857

J— d— - —_—— —_— —_— b o ——— - —————— - ———— — e - ———

14173 $5432727 12373 $5217,154 11623 $5250,199

- e —_——— e — e — -

11823 $5247.403 107.63 $5200835 10783 $5,189.023

——— i —. —_——_ . —_— e — ——— e -
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
[Last Ten Calendar Years

96

Total Percent of Delinquent

Fiscal Tax Current Tax Current Taxes Tax

__ Year . Llewyy __ Collections __Collected Collections
1996 $ 5,234 683 $ 5,025,457 96.00% 8,443
1995 5,521,688 5,309,397 96.16% 107,271
1994 5,390,434 5,372,866 899.67% 4335
1993 4,060,402 4,017,162 98.94% 25,743
1992 3,000,882 3,947,111 08.68% 22,090
1991 3,840,452 3,756,185 87.81% 35,335
1990 3,863,005 3,783,767 97.95% 5,936
1989 3,815,747 3,750,479 98.29% 5,357
1988 3,882,045 3,829,736 98.65% 14,453
1687 3,801,672 3,673,858 96.64% 8,339




Table d

Ratio of Ratio of
Total Total Tax Outstanding Delinquent
Tax Coliections to Delinquent Taxes to Total
_Collections ~~ Total Tax Levy oo Yaxes  Taxlevy
5,033,800 96.16% 316,897 6.05%
5,416,668 08.10% 211,130 3.82%
5,377,201 99.75% 144,239 2.68%
4,042,905 99.57% 93,636 2.31%
3,869,201 99.23% 128,971 3.22%
3,791,520 98.73% Not Available
3,789,703 98.10% Not Available
3,755,836 08.43% Not Available
3,644 189 099.02% Not Available
3,682,197 96.86% Not Available
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF PROPERTY (1) (3)
Last Ten Calendar Years

Real Property (2) Personal Property

W—— e e W ——

~ "Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated
_ Year __ Value _.Actual Value _..__ Value | __Actual Value
1995 103,375,050 809,475,043 50,606,120 $ 315611,863
1994 06,011,410 757,632,347 53,119,350 313,148,013
1993 93,821,850 725,476,367 44,118,360 271,139,520
1992 80,931,070 696,731,020 45,518,540 276,212,907
1991 86,492,220 669,310,477 43,101,430 256,584,893
1990 87,031,340 665,348,463 38,214,090 234,242,360
1989 85,003,130 646,667,163 39,684,950 239,065,800
1986 80,805,303 614,673,870 40,373,450 242,628,813
1987 80,171,220 604,096,607 42,344,580 254 213,467
1986 77,719,770 586,559,673 42,020,610 257,725,267
NOTES:

(1) Total assessed value is 10% to 25% of estimated actual value.
(2) Homestead exemption is $75,000 estimated actua! value ($7,500 assessed value) per household.

(3) Source: Lincoln Parish Tax Assessors Grand Recapitulation
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Table e

Ratio of Total

__Exemptiors e Total e Assessed Value
Real Assessed Estimated To Total Estimated

.. Property . _ Vvalue Actual Value Actual Value

$ 34,089,270 $ 119,891,900 1,125,087,836 10.66%
35,288,800 113,841,960 1,070,780,360 10.63%
34,089,270 103,850,940 996,615,887 10.42%
33,315,340 102,134,270 972,043,927 10.50%
32,115,700 97,477,950 925,895,370 10.53%
31,748,280 03,497,150 899,590,823 10.39%
31,576,870 93,111,110 885,732,963 10.561%
31,104,540 90,074,213 857,302,683 10.51%
30,466,870 92,048,930 858,310,164 10.72%
30,014,660 89,725,720 844,284,940 10.63%
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

PROPERTY TAX MILLAGE RATES - ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS(1)
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

i ———— = = % et PR IS S—— S— -

——

" FIVE MILL DEBT PARISHWIDE MAINTENANCE
GENERAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE M&O & OPERATION

YEAR _FUND FUND ~ FUND FUND  _ FUND TJOTAL  PARISH MAINTENANCE
1996 10.05 5.10 78.20 12.00 8.89 114.24 4.80 4.38
1995 10.05 5.10 06.00 12.00 8.89 132.04 4.80 4.38
1994 10.05 5.10 107.50 12.00 8.89 143.54 4.80 4.38
1993 10.05 5.10 107.50 8.89 131.54 4.80 4.38
1992 10.28 5.22 117.00 9.23 141.73 4.80 4.38
1991 10.28 5,22 99.00 9.23 123.73 4.91 4.48
1990 10.28 5.22 93.50 0.23 118.23 4,91 4.48
1989 10.28 5.22 96.50 6.23 118.23 4.91 4.48
1088 0.86 5.01 87.00 5.96 107.83 4.91 4.48
1987 0.86 5.01 87.00 5.96 107.83 4.70 4.29
NOTES:

(1) All information obtained from Legislative Auditors Taxes ltemized Statements except for cities tax levies
which was obtained from the Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor.

(2) Includes the cities of Ruston, Grambling, Simsboro and Dubach.
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FIRE

_DISTRICT

8.00

8.00

9.90

9.90

9.90

10.20

—_———

ROAD

CONSTRUCTION

4.38

4.38

4.38

4.38

4.38

4.48

4.48

4.48

4.48

4.29

HOSPITAL

0.70

0.70

0.70

0.70

0.75

0.50

0.50

0.30

3.60

3.60

3.60

3.60

3.60

3.68

3.68

3.68

3.68

3.562

LIBRARY
MAINTENANCE

101

ENFORCEMENT

—_—— A

LAW

13.22

13.22

13.22

13.22

13.22

4.83

7.49

7.49

7.49

7.18

ASSESSMENT
. DISTRICT

e r— ————

2.51

2.51

2.51

2.51

2.51

1.60

2.57

2.57

2.57

2.46

Table f

CITIES (2)

46.28

45.12

45.12

4512

4512

4513

45.03

48.02

49.25

41.70




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
Last Ten Fiscal Years

RATIO OF
(1) (3) (2} (3) LESS NET NET BONDED
FISCAL  ESTIMATED ASSESSED GROSS DEBT SERVIGE BONDED DEBT TO
YEAR  POFULATION ~ VALUE 2~ BONDEDDEBT = FUNDS =~ DEBT ASSESSED VALUE
1996 43,024 $ 110,801,900 $ 14115000 $ 2,017,886 $ 12,007,114 10.09%
1995 42,950 113,841,960 15,230,000 2,252,912 12,977,080 11.40%
1994 42,524 103,850,940 16,270,000 2,154,924 14,115,076 13.50%
1993 42,490 102,134,270 16,890,000 1,851,625 14,938,375 14.63%
1992 42,075 07,477,950 17,715,000 1,784,846 15,930,154 16.34%
1991 41,745 63,497,150 17,560,000 2,116,132 15,443,668 16.52%
1990 43,518 93,111,110 18,120,000 2,111,276 16,008,724 17.99%
1989 43,500 00,074,213 18,677.000 2,195,479 16,481,521 18.30%
1988 44,500 82,048,930 19,162,000 2,013,092 17,148,908 18.63%
1987 43,138 89,725,720 19,585,000 1,916,630 17,678,370 19.70%
NOTE:

(1) Census information was obtained from the Coliege of Business Administration, Division of Research at
Louisiana Tech University.

(2) The source of assessment is Lincoln Parish Assessor's tax rolls. Assessed values are established
by the Parish Assessor's Office each year based on 10% of the assumed market value of residential
property and commercial tand and on 15% of the assumed market value of commercial buildings,
personal property and 25% of the assumed market value of public utilities as required by the
State Constitution. A reassessment of all property is required to be compieted no less than every
four years.

(3) Estimated Population and Assessed Value is as of December 31.
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Table g

NET
BONDED
DEBT
_PER CAPITA

$ 281
302
332
352
379
370
368
379

385

410




Table h
LINCOLN FPARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
JUNE 30, 1986

ASSESSED VALUATIONS:
Assessed Value $ 119,891,900
Add Back: Exempt Real Property 34,089,270
TOTAL ASSESSED VALUE $ 153,981,170

— o —— —_———— i —————

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN:

Debt Limit of Thirty-Three Percent {(33%) $ 50,813,786

L ess Gross Bonded Debt 14,115,000

TOTAL LEGAL DEBT MARGIN $ 36,608,786
NOTE:

(1) Legal debt limit of 33% is established by Louisiana Revised Statute Title 39, Section 562, Paragraph G.
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Table i
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
June 30, 1996
PERCENTAGE AMOUNT
APPLICABLE TO . APPLICABLE TO
GROSS DEBT LINCOLN PARISH LINCOLN PARISH
____ GOVERNMENTAL UNIT OUTSTANDING SCHOOL BOARD (1) SCHOOL BOARD
DIRECT:
Lincoln Parish School Board $ 14,115,000 100% $ 14,115,000
OVERLAPPING: (2) $
City of Grambling 185,000 100% 185,000
Lincoln General Hospital 5,000 100% 5,000
Lincoln Parish Fire Protection
District No. 1 __.....3,330,000 100% 3,330,000
TOTAL $___ 17,635,000 $.__ . 17635000
NOTE:

(1) All property within Lincoln Parish must bear the debt of the Lincoln Parish Schoo! Board: therefore., all other taxing
entities within the parish fall under the Board's taxing jurisdiction. The computation of the amount applicable to the
Board, within the context that such debt will be serviced through levies upon the same properties which the Board
taxes, is determined by applying the above percentages to the net amount of debt outstanding.

(2) Source: Annual audit reports of the various governments.
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Table
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SFERVICE EXPENDITURES
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

RATIO OF DEBT

INTEREST TOTAL SERVICE TO

FISCAL AND FISCAL DEBT TOTAL GENERAL TOTAL GENERAL
. JEAR _PRINCIPAL CHARGES (2) __SERVICE EXPENDITURES (1) EXPENDITURES

1996 $ 1,115,000 $ 888,840 $ 2,003,840 $ 27,162,115 7.38%

1995 1,040,000 1,029,322 2,069,322 26,157,334 7.91%

1994 971,130 1,132,462 2,103,592 25,177,628 8.36%

1993 825,000 1,268,893 2,083,893 22,088,748 9.48%

1992 930,000 1,314,262 2,244,262 23,787,973 0.43%

1991 560,000 1,689,317 2,249,317 22,274,035 10.10%

1990 557,000 1,745,948 2,302,948 21,092,128 10.92%

1089 485,000 1,795,489 2,280,489 18,775,051 12.15%

1988 433,000 1,831,769 2,264,768 18,289,393 12.38%

1887 76,000 1,703,847 1,778,847 17,187,930 10.36%
NOTE.:

(1) Includes General Fund and Debt Service Funds.

(2) Excludes bond issuance's and other costs.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits
Last Ten Years

B S Property Value (1) ) . _
Year __Commercial (5) Residential (5) Exemptions (4) _ Total =
1995 $ 250,226374 ? $ 559,248,570 $ 332,477,700 $ 476,998,244
1994 228,021,847 529,610,500 347,067,070 410,565,277
1093 221,024,127 504,452,240 332,477,700 392,998,667
1992 209,642,240 487,088,780 326,405,380 370,325,640
1991 202,884,227 466,426,250 314,491,780 354,818,697
1990 203,746,253 461,602,210 310,377,660 354,970,803
1580 185,687,113 450,680,050 307,919,180 338,747,983
1988 179,020,180 435,653,690 303,016,860 311,657,010
1987 180,237,727 423,858,970 296,321,470 307,775,227
1986 173,613,353 412,746,320 291,738,080 294,821,593
NOTE:

(1) Source: Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor's Grand Recapitulation

(2) Source: City of Ruston Inspection Department

(3) Source: Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions

(4} The exemption column is calculated at estimated actual value. Table d reflects the exemptions column at excess value.

(5} The sum of Commercial and Residential equals the estimated actuatl value for real property in Table d
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__Construction (2)

——

~_____ Commercial ] - Residential B
Number of Number of Bank
~ Units ] Value Units 3 Value ~_ Deposits {3)
116 $ 10,166,321 158 $ 5,602,631 $ 454,765,000
115 11,290,388 344 8,874,455 472,828,000
135 15,673,019 272 6,420,127 457,595,000
85 7,173,821 299 8,252,320 456,996,000
82 3,939,707 248 4,135,301 455,747,000
81 3,100,304 223 3,624,753 438,335,000
102 6,637,006 215 2,709,544 411,222,000
63 3,600,339 105 2,076,118 413,269,000
73 10,290,216 107 3,466,728 {nformation not available
6E 10,485,385 123 5,521,055 information not available
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Table |
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

PRINCIPAL AD VALOREM TAXPAYERS (1)
December 31, 1995

PERCENT OF
TOTAL

TYPE OF TAXABLE

__ . COMPANY ... BUSINESS _ASSESSMENT TAXBILL(2)  _VALUATION_
Mississippi River Transmission Corp. Gas Transmission $ 9,421,380 $ 707,373 6.12%
South Central Bell Tele. Co. Telephone Utility 4,817,150 404 200 3.13%
Noram Gas Transmission Co. Gas Transmission 4,454 470 332,498 2.89%
Laclede Gas Co. Gas Transmission 4,119,010 285,447 2.68%
Louisiana Power & Light Co. Electric Utility 3,106,880 270,324 2.02%
Willamette tndustries, Inc. Pulp/Paper Manufacturing 2,519,960 216,971 1.64%
Ruston State Bank & Trust Co. Financial Institution 2,316,350 195,157 1.50%
Wal Mart Stores inc. Retail Sales 1,920,090 164,608 1.25%
Noram Energy Corp. Electric Utility 1,875,800 164,336 1.28%
Ball Glass Container Corp. Glass Manufacturing 1,838,380 157,402 - 1.19%
TOTALS $ 36489570  $ 2,898,317 _23.70%.

—— e s ke Bly e e W -— ——— — ——

NOTES:
(1) Information obtained from Lincoln Parish Tax Assessor's Office
(2) Represents Parishwide Tax Bill
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Industry

Construction
University
University

Public Schools
Poultry Production
Hospital

Glass Containers
Hospital
Government

Trucking

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA
TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS

June 30, 1886

_Company Name

—_—

T. L. James Construction Company
Louisiana Tech University

Grambling State University

Lincoln Parish School Board

ConAgra Poultry Co

Lincoln General Hospital

Ball Foster Glass Container Corporation
North Louisiana Rehabilitation Hospital
City of Ruston

Davison Transport

Source: Ruston/Lincoln Chamber of Commerce
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Number of
Employees

3,000
1,200
1,130
930
600
536
485
316
315

280




_YEAR

—_ e ————

1996
1995
1994
1993
1992
1991
1990
1989
1688

1987

NOTE:

(1) Census information was obtained from the Department of Labor, Unemployment Office, Research Division.

{2) Information obtained from Lincoln Parish School Board Annual Financial and Statistical Reports filed with the

—_— e ——

(1)

ESTIMATED
POPULATION

—_— ra . ——

43,024
42,950
42,524
42,480
42,075
41,745
43,518
43,500
44,500

43,138

(1)
PER

CAPITA

INCOME

$ 16.255

15,760
15,510
15,260
14,710
13,845
12,401
10,374
10,077

8,927

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

DEMOGRAPRIC STATISTICS
Last Ten Years

UNEMP(LgYMENT ME(SI,AN
— RATE (AGE
3.2% 25.13
3.9% 25.04
4.2%
3.6% 25.07
4.2%
4.8%
3.5% 24.52
5.3%
5.4%
5.3%

(2)
PUBLIC
SCHOOL

ENROLLMENT

7,091
7.129
7.268
7,247
7,227
7,099
6,934
6,883
6,949

6,751

Tablen

(2)
PUBLIC
HIGH SCHOOL

_ GRADUATES

357
325
340
337
346
355
390
382
350

339

Louisiana Department of Education and the Louisiana Progress Profilles, District Composite Report for Lincoln Parish.

{3) Information obtained from Louisiana State Library, Louisiana Room.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston Louisiana

Miscellaneous Statistical Data

Form of Government

Area of Parish

Regular School Days

Number of Schools:

Total

K & Special Ed.

K-5

K-8

K-12

6 Grade Only

Junior High (7-8 only)
High School (7-12 only)
High School (9-12 only)

June 30, 1996

Enroliment (Public School Only):

Total

Preschool
Kindergarten
Grades 1-5
Grades 6-8
Grades 9-12

111

President/School Board
472 Square Miles
180

29

579
2,814
1,718
1,951

1,091
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

COMPLIANCE WITH SINGLE AUDIT ACT OF 1984
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996
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ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

2414 FERRAND STREET
MONROE, LOUISIANA 71201

|

ERNEST L. ALLEN, CPA MAL ADDRESS.
(A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) POST OFFICE BOX 6075

MONROE, LA 71211-6075
TELEPHONE (318) 388-4422
FAX (318) 388-4654

TIMOTHY J. GREEN, CPA
BONNIE T. ROBINETTE, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAIL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston,
Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issucd our report thereon dated November 22, 1996.

We conducted our audit mn accordance with gencrally accepled auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, 1ssucd by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular
A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statements are frec of material misstatement.

The management of the Lincoln Parish School Board 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required {0 asscss
the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policics and procedures. The objectives of an
internal contro! structurc are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets arc
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are exccuted in accordance with
management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance
with gencrally accepled accounting principles. Because of mherent limitations in any internal control structure,
errors or irregularitics may nevertheless occur and not be detected.  Also, projection of any evaluation of the
structure to future periods 1s subject to the risk that procedures may become mmadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the cliectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate.

In planming and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School
Board for the year ended June 30, 1996, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect
to the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and
whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control nisk in order to detecrmine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not 1o provide
an opinion on the internal control structure. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNRTANTS anc SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, l.ouisiana

We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider {o be
reportablce conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants which
ar¢ described in Conditions #1 and #2 of the accompanying Schedulc of Reportable Conditions. Reportablc
conditions involve matiers coming 10 our attention relating to significant deficiencics in the design or opcration of
the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the entity's ability to record, process,
summarize¢, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the genera! purpose financial
statemenis.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the intcrnal
contro! structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularitics in amounts
that would bc material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being auditcd may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by cmployees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportablce
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe none of the
reportable conditions described above 1s a matenal weakness.

This report is intended for the information of the Audit Commuttee, Board Members, management, Louisiana
Department of Education, U. S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencies. However, this
reporl 18 a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited.

/5} e Sheen 7‘ Kop b i e L

ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.

Monroc, Louisiana
November 22, 1996
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

BOARD MEMBERS

LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston,
Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 1996,

We conducied our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and
Budgct (OMB) Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular A-
128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable 1o the Lincoln Parish School Board 1s the
responsibility of management of the School Board. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements arc free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the School Board's compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. However, the objective of our audit of the general
purpose financial statcments was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances or noncompliance that are required to be reporied under
Government Auditing Standards. We noted two instances of immaterial noncompliance which are included in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Ttus report is intended {or the information of the Audit Committee, Board Members, management, Louisiana
Department of Education, U. S, Deparitment of Education and other applicable federal agencies. However, this
report 15 a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited.

A Udirn Ahe,. *P0b vl

ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.

Monroc, Louisiana
November 22, 1996

WMEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS and SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID BOARD MEMBERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

month for performing the duties of the office.

Total

Mr. David Wright, President
Mr. William E. Abrahm

Mr. Wayne Barficld

Dr. Marty Beaslecy

Mrs. Loyace D. Braggs

Mr. Curtis Dowling

Mr, James R. Kessler

Mr. George Mack

Mr. Joe E. Mitcham, Jr.
Mr. Robert E. Shadoin
Mr. Allen Tuten

Mr. Calvin Wilkerson

The schedule of compensation paid to School Board members is presented 1n compliance with Housc
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School Board
members 1s included in the general administrative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana
Revised Statute 17:50, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation.
Under this method, each member of the School Board receives $400 per month and the president receives $300 per

$ 6,000

4,800
4,800
4 800
4,800
4,800
4,800
4,800
4,800
4,800
4,800
4,800

$58 800
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME

CASH FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed through Louisiana Department of Education:
School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program

Total United States Department of Agnculture

United States Department of Education
Direct Programs:
Impact Aid (Title VIII)
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Education:
Adult Education - State Grant Program
Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies
formerly Chapter 1 (carryover)
Special Education:
Grants to Statcs (Part B)
Preschool Grants
Grants for Infants and Families with Disabihities
(Part H - Infant/Toddler)
Vocational Education:
Basic Grants to States
Innovative Education Program Strategics - Title VI (formerly Chapter 2)
Title 1] (Eisenhower Professional Development - State Grants)
Title IV (Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant)
LLearn 2000
State and lLocal Education Sysicmatic Improvement

Grants {Learn 2000 State Grants)

Total United States Depariment of Education

United States Department of Detense
Direct Programs:
Department of The Army
ROTC

Total United States Department of Defense
Total Cash Federa) Assistance

NONCASH FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

United Statcs Department of Agriculture |
Passed Through Louisiana Department of Agriculture and Forestry:
Food Distribution (Commoditics)

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

CFDA
NUMBER

10.553
10.555

84.041]
84.002
84.010

84.027
84.173

84.181

34.048
§4.298
8§4.28]
84.186

84.276

NONE

10.550

REVENUES

$ 256,462
089,805

$1,246.267

$ 15,946
23,610
1,358,230

245,457
39,717

1,404
5% 848
35,751

24 609
36,220

77.452

$1.917.250

33.806

$ 33,806

$3,197,323

141,239

$3.338.562




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance prescenis the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston, Louisiana. The Lincoln Parish School Board (the
“School Board™) reporting entity 1s defined in note 1(B) to the School Board’s general purposc financial statements,
Fedcral {inancial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal financial assystance passed
through other government agencies, 1s 1ncluded on the schedulce.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance 1s presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which 1s described in note 1(D) to the School Board’s general purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal financial assistance revenues are reported in the School Board’s general purpose financial statements
as follows:

Federal Sources

General Fund $ 127204

Special Revenue Funds:
Title ] 1,358,230
Title VI 35,751
Special ducation Fund 286,578
Tile 11 24.609
Drug-Free - Title 1V 36,220
Adult Education 23,610
Vocationa! Education 58,848
School Food Service 1,387,506
§3,338,562

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Aroounts reporicd in the accompanying schedule agrec with the amounts rcporied n the related federal
financial reports except for changes made to reflect amounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.




LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana |

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

NOTE 5 - MAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

Major federal financial assistance programs include any program for which federal expenditures for that
program exceed 3% of total federal expenditures of all federal programs. The major federal financial assistance
programs arc:

Title 1 CFDA# 84.010
National School Lunch Program CFDA# 10,555

NOTE 6 - NONCASH PROGRAMS

The commodities received, which are noncash revenucs, are valued using prices provided by the United Statcs
Departrent of Agriculture.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE INTERNAL
CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTERING
FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

Wec have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston,
Louisiana, as of and for the vear ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 1996,
We have also audited the Lincoln Parish School Board's comphance with requirements applicable to major federal
financial assistance programs and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 1996,

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purposc financial statements
are free of matenal misstatement and whether the Lincoln Parish Schoo! Board complied with laws and regulations,
noncompliance with which would be matenial to a major federal financial assistance program.

In planning and performing our audits for the year ended June 30, 1996, we considered the School Board's
internal contro! structurc in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the gencral purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board and on its comphance with
requircments applicablc to major programs and to report on the internal control structure 1n accordance with OMB
Circular A-128. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policics and procedures
relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance programs. We have addressed
internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the general purpose financial statements
in a scparate reporl dated November 22, 1996,

The management of the Lincoln Parish School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structurc. In fulfilhing this responsibility, estimales and judgments by management are required 1O asscss
the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an
internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are
safcguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with
management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial stalcments
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal financial assistance programs are
managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTIYUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANYS and SOCIEYY OF LOLUSIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOILN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected.  Also,
projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedurcs may become
inadecquate becausc of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policics and
procedures may deteriorate.

For the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and
procedures used in administering federal financial assistance programs in the following categories:

Accounting Controls
Cash Payroll and related lhabilitics
Expenditures for goods and services Property, equipment and capital
and accounts payable expenditures

Singlc andit and similar grant programs

Admmistrative Controls

Gencral requirements: Speafic Requirements:
Political activity Types of services allowed or unallowed
Civil rights Ehgibility
Davis-Bacon Act Level of effort
Cash management Reporting
Federal financial reporis Special tests and provisions
Allowable costs/cost principles Claims for advances and reimbursements

Drug-Free Workplace Act
Admunistrative requirements

For all of the internal control structure categones hsted above, we obtained an understandmmg of the design of
relevant policies and procedures and dctermined whether they have been placed 1n operation, and we assessed
control risk.

During the years ended June 30, 1996, the Lincoln Parish School Board expended 68% of 1ts total federal
financial assistance under major fedcral financial assistance programs.

W performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design
and opcration of internal control structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or
detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirements, and requirements governing
claims for advances and reimbursements, that are applicable to each of the School Board's major federal financial
assistance programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. Our
procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these internal control structure
policics and procedurcs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We noted certain matlers involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be
reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants which
arc described in Condition #2 of the accompanying Schedule of Reportable Conditions. Reportable conditions
involve matiers coming to our attention relating 1o significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal
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BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Ruston, Louisiana

control structurc that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the School Board's ability to admunister federal
{inancial assistance programs in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

A matcrial weakness 1s a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and

regulations that would bc material to a federal financial assistance program may occur and not be detected within
a timely period by employees 1n the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Our consideration of the internal control structure policies and procedures used in admmistering federal
financial assistance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be
reporiable conditions and, accordingly, would not nccessarily disclosc all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe the reportable condition described
above 1s not a material weakness.

This report 1s intended for the information of the Audit Committec, Board Members, management, Louisiana

Department of Education, U. S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencies. However, this
report 1s a matter of public record, and its distribution 1s not limited.

ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, 1.L.P.

Monroe, Louisiana
November 22, 1996
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH THE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

We have audited the general purposc financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston,
Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issucd our report thereon dated Novenber 22, 1996,

We have apphied procedures to (est the Lincoln Parish School Board's compliance with the following
requircments applicable to its federal financial assistance programs, which are identificd in the Schedule of Federal
Financial Assistance, for the year ended June 30, 1996. political activity, crvil nights, Davis-Bacon Act, cash
management, federal financial reports, allowable costs/cost principles, Drug-Free Workplace Act compliance and
administrative reguircments.

QOur procedures were himited 1o the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budget's
"Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments." Our procedurcs were substantially

less 1n scope than an audit, the objective of which 1s the expression of an opimon on the School Board's compliance
with the requirements listed 1n the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of
noncompliance with the requirements lisied 1n the second paragraph of this report. With respect to items not tested,
nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the School Board had not complied, in all material
respects, with those requirements. However, the results of our procedures disclosed an immaterial instance of
noncompliance with those requirements, which 1s described in Finding #1 of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Que¢stioned Costs.

This report 1s intended for the information of the Audit Committec, Board Members, management, Louisiana
Department of Education, U, S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencies. However, this
report 1s a matter of public record, and its distribution 1s not limited.

W oline Arenn & Kohwellla

ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.

Monroc, Louisiana
November 22, 1996
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ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, LL.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
2414 FERRAND STREET
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
MAJOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOILN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, L.ouisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board, Ruston,
Louwssiana, as of and {or the year ended June 30, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 1996,

We have also audited the Lincoln Parish School Board's compliance with the requirements governing types
of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; level of effort; reporting; special tests and provisions and claims for
advances and reimbursements that are applicable to each of the School Board's major federal financial assistance
programs, which arc identified i the accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance, for the year ended
June 30, 1996. The management of the Lincoln Parish School Board is responsible for the School Board's
comphiance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opiion on compliance with those
requirements bascd on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments " Those standards and
OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
material noncompliance with the requirements referred 1o above occurred. An audil includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit provides
a rcasonablc basis for our opinion.

In our opimion, the Lincoln Parish School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requircments
governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; level of effort; reporting; special tests and provisions
and claims for advances and reimbursements that are applicable to each of its major federal financial assistance
programs for the year ended June 30, 1996.

This report 1s intended for the information of the Audit Committce, Board Members, management, Louisiana
Department of Education, U. S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencics. However, this
report 15 a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited.

/9 W en W""‘“ 20 h n e T2

ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.
Monroce, Louisiana
November 22, 1996
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ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
2414 FERRAND STREET
MONROE, LOUISIANA 71201

ERNEST L. ALLEN, CPA MAIL ADORESS:
(A PROFE SSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) POST OFFICE BOX 6075
BONNIE 7. ROBINETTE, CPA FAX (318) 388-4664

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO NONMAJOR
FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS

BOARD MEMBERS
LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statcments of the Lincoln Parish School Board as of and for the
year ended June 30, 1996, and have issucd our report thereon dated November 22, 1996.

In connection with our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Lincoln Parish School Board,
and with our consideration of the School Board's control structure used to administer federa! financial assistance
programs, as requircd by Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local

Governments," we selected certain transactions applicable to certain nonmajor federal financial assistance programs
for the year ended June 30, 1996

As required by OMB Circular A-128, we have performed auditing procedures to test compliance with the
requircments govermng types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility and special provisions that are applicablc
to those transactions. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the
expression of an opinion on the School Board's compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

With respect to the items tesied, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of
noncompliance with the requircments listed in the preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing
came to our atiention that caused us to believe that the Lincoln Parish School Board had not complicd, in all material
respects, with those requirements.

This report is intended for the information of the Audit Commitiee, Board Members, management, Louisiana
Department of Education, U. S. Department of Education and other applicable federal agencies. However, this
report 1s a maiter of public record, and its distribution is not limited.
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ALLEN, GREEN & ROBINETTE, L.L.P.
Monroc, Loutsiana
November 22, 1996
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

STATUS OF PRIOR REPORTABLE CONDITIONS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

The status of the comments included in the prior audit report 1s as follows:

1. Property and Equipment Software

Sec current-year reportable condition #1.

2. Inadequate Invoice Documentation

This item has been resolved.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

The status of the comments included in the prior audit report 1s as follows:

1. Davis-Bacon Act

This finding 1s considered resolved.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Loutsiana

SCHEDULE OF REPORTABLE CONDITIONS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

Property and Equipment Software

CONDITION: The School Board presently has two software systems for fixed assets. One system was used
for many years. Another software system was developed and has been in wse since 1991, The system being
used provides greater flexibility but doesn't provide an audit trail for additions and deletions to fixed assets.

REASON IMPROVEMENT NEEDED: A better internal control system is needed for changes in fixed
assets.

CAUSE OF CONDITION: The School Board was unaware of the weakness in the systcm.

EFFECT OF CONDITION: A less than desirable internal contro) system for fixed assets.

RECOMMENDATION: The School Board should revert to the previously used software system for fixed
assets because 1t provides the desired control over changes to fixed assets.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE: The School Board will reactivate the older property and equipment

softwarc.

Fixed Assets
(All Funds, All Programs)

CONDITION: The School Board's list of fixed assets is ncither current nor accurate. A physical Inventory
is performed cach summer. However, no additions and deletions arc inputted until approximatcly six months
afier each physical inventory. This causes the fixed asset listing to lag behind by at Icast six months and as
much as a ycar and a half. At the completion of the field work, additions and delctions for the inventory from
the summer of 1996 had not been entered.  Further, during testing of the fixed asset listing provided by the
School Board, we were unable to locate some items appearing on the fixed asset listing. Also, we were unable
to trace some cquipment found at the schools to the fixed asset listing.

REASONIMPROVEMENT NEEDED: To provide an accurate accounting and safeguarding of fixed assets
to comply with state law regarding fixed assets, and to comply with requirements of all grant programs.

*

CAUSE OF CONDITION: Low priority placed on the fixed assets inventory.

EFFECT OF CONDITION: Inadequate accounting records, inadequatc internal control over safeguarding
of fixed assets, and possible noncompliance with LSA-R.S. 24:515.

RECOMMENDATION: The School Board should update its fixed asset inventory throughout the year. The
listing could be updated as additions and deletions are made, on a monthly basis, or on a quarterly basis.

During physical inventories, care should be taken to update the fixed. asset listing so that all items are
1dentifiable.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE: Management will take the steps nceded to comply with the auditors
recommendations.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Loulsiana

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

Public Bid Law

CONDITION: Out of four materials and supplies bids, one matcrials and supplies quote, and one public
works quote tested, the following were found:

1. One instance where no documentation existed to verify that at Icast three quotes were obtaned for the
purchase of materials and supplies between $5,000 and $10,000.

REASON IMPROVEMENT NEEDED: To ensure that the School Board 1s in compliance with statc

statutcs concemning bid laws and that the School Board receives proper value for materials and supplics or
construction received.

CAUSE OF CONDITION: Procedures concerning the bidding quotation process are lax.

EFFECT OF CONDITION: The School Board may be in violation of state statutes concerning public bid
law.

RECOMMENDATION: The Schoo! Board should institute all requirements of the Louisiana Public Bid Law
in its procurement process and should adequately document its compliance.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE: Management will take whatever action is nccessary to conply with the
audilors recommendations,

Late Filing of Audit Report

CONDITION: The Louisiana Legistative Auditor requires audit reports to be filed within six months of the
year-end of the governments. The audit report as of and for the year ended June 30, 1996 was filed
approximately January 31, 1997

REASON IMPROVEMENT NEEDED: To comply with state regulations.

CAUSE OF CONDITION: An uncxpected work load and turnover of personnel of the audit firm 1n the
fourth quarter of 1996.

EFFECT OF CONDITION: Violation of state regulation.

RECOMMENDATION: Future audit reports should be filed within six months of year-end.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE: The School Board will monitor closely the progress of future audits to
assurc compliance with this filing regulation.
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LINCOLN PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Ruston, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996

3. Budget Overruns
(Various)

CONDITION: The School Board had unfavorable budget variances exceeding 5% for the following funds
for the year ended June 30, 1996:

Unfavorable
Fund Budget Actual Variance
Expenditures and other financing uses
General Fund:
1967 Sales Tax Accounts 1,980,000 2,130,250 150,250
1993 Sales Tax Accounts 1,745,315 1,842,105 96,790

REASON IMPROVEMENT NEEDED: The "Lowsiana Local Government Budget Act” requires budgets
be. amended if expected actual revenues and other {inancing sources or expenditurcs and other {inancing uses

exceed respective budgeted amounts by five percent or more.

CAUSE OF CONDITION: Actual sales tax revenues collections for the last two months of the year excecded

anticipated revenues. The sales tax revenue is primarily dedicated to salaries. Increases in sales tax collections
results in increased salary expenses.

EFXFECT OF CONDITION: The School Board 1s in violation of Louisiana Revised Statute LSA-R.S.
39:1309-1310.

RECOMMENDATION: The School Board should monitor budget to actual periodically and amend the
budget as necded.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE: In the future, effort will be madc to anticipate material changes i actual
expenditures at the end of the fiscal year in order that all budget variances are within five percent of budget
as permitted by statute. These unfavorable expenditures variances were offset by favorable revenue vanances,
resulting in practically no gain or loss to the School Board.
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